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2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
31 31 31 31 31
8,310 9,403 10,046 10,717 11,640
900,305 1,018,721 1,088,384 1,161,080 1,261,078
2,717 2,352 1,439 1,825 1,984
294,360 254,816 155,901 197,721 214,947
1,197 932 267 3,410 795
129,683 100,973 28,927 369,439 86,130
915 915 915 915 915
99,131 99,131 99,131 99,131 99,131
91,500 91,500 91,500 91,500 91,500
8,520 9,397 9,524 12,880 13,578
923,057 1,018,071 1,031,830 1,395,419 1,471,041
109,503 114,592 119,635 120,546 116,516
11,863,555 12,414,897 12,961,256 13,059,954 12,623,343
93.11 102.70 104.09 140.77 148.39
10,088 11,127 11,277 15,251 16,077
13.08 10.19 2.92 37.27 8.69
1,417 1,104 316 4,038 941
7.8 8.2 8.0 10.7 11.7
14.7 10.4 2.8 30.4 6.0
3,767 7,839 5,914 8,335 5,935
408,117 849,277 640,723 903,014 642,998
(11,921) (9,830) (9,676) (7,484) (3,016)
(1,291,521) (1,064,982) (1,048,298) (810,817) (326,753)
6,746 2,285 5,336 1,377) (4,495)
730,862 247,557 578,102 (149,184) (486,988)
2,407 2,701 4,198 3,540 2,198
260,774 292,626 454,811 383,524 238,131
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31
2017 2018 2019
$143 $3,178 $593
124 232 202
$267 $3,410 $795
14—
2018 2019
2018 3,410 2019
795 2018 2019
2017 TCJIA 2018 2.9
2018 2019
923
132 35
896
2018 31 12.9 0.7
2019 31 13.6 2018 31
98.4 2019 31 92.9
2018 31 7.6 2019 31 6.8
2017 2018
2017 267 2018
3,410 2017 2018
TCJIA 2,771
2017 2018
671 181
188
139 97
2017 31 9.5 3.4
2018 31 12.9
2017 31 98.2 2018 31 98.4
2017 31 10.3 2018 31 7.6
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2017 2018
2017 2018 2019

2018 2019
$7,720 $8,167 $8,694 6% 6%
1,850 1,974 2,235 % 13%
476 576 711 21% 23%
10,046 10,717 11,640 % 9%
6,853 7,041 6,909 3% @)%
1,759 1,863 2,769 6% 49%
1,434 1,813 1,962 26% 8%
337 140 188 (58)% 34%
1,771 1,953 2,150 10% 10%
582 401 372 GL)% %
979 1,028 1,038 5% 1%
1,561 1,429 1,410 ()% L)%
210 524 740 150% 41%
67 (2,654) 147 (4,061)% 106%
$143 $3,178 $593 2,122% (81)%

2018 3,178 2019 593

2018 2019
TCJA 2018 2.9
2018 2019
923 132
48 906
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2018 3.4 2019 4.3
2019 2018 7,041 6,909
2018 2019
31
2017 2018 2019
$1,570 $1,970 $2,559
(18) 67) (53)
1,552 1,903 2,506
(652) 1,344 (1,078)
880 (1,306) 1,015
(26) (90) 304

$1,754 $1,851 $2,747
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«C )
614 644 567 5% 12)%
291 255 263 12)% 3%
557 516 498 % @)%
1,462 1,415 1,328 @)% (6)%
TMNA
380 420 316 11% (25)%
84 52 35 (38)% (33)%
482 481 471 % )%
946 953 822 1% (14)%
« ) 62.9% 61.6% 59.8%
2017 79 18
2018 2019 80
17

TMNA
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TMNA TMNA
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31
2017 2018
2017 2018 2019
2018 2019

$50,686 $52,378 $53,016 3% 1%
« ) 17,776 17,269 17,501 3% 1%
68,462 69,647 70,517 2% 1%
38,152 38,697 37,927 1% @)%
$106,614  $108,344  $108,444 2% %

37 37 37

64 66 67
993 988 956 W% @)%
371 364 372 @)% 2%
1,364 1,352 1,328 @)% @)%
340 334 309 @)% %

24 60
24 85
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2019 31
2018 31
2018
2019 31
2018 31
2019 31 2018 31
31
2017 2018
2017 2018 2019
2018 2019

508 460 578 (9% 26%
96 93 114 @)% 23%
39 38 57 @)% 50%
126 117 137 % 17%
261 248 308 5% 24%
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26 24
31
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2018 2019
) $6,853 $7,041 $6,909 3% @)%
1,421 1,469 1,473 3% %

2018 7,041
2019 6,909 2018 2019
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2017 2018
2017 2018 2019
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2,415 2,489 2,475 3 @)%
7,362 8,272 8,975 12% 8%
)
$804 $882 $904 10% %
64 129 126 102% )%
868 1,011 1,030 16% 2%
371 425 446 15% 5%
298 329 347 10% 5%
669 754 793 13% 5%
199 257 237 29% ()%
75 25 35 (67)% 40%
$124 $232 $202 87% (13)%
2018 232 2019
202 2018 2019
21 18
10 22
2018 2019
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2019 31
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2018 31 2019 31

$1,358 $544

(560) (441)

(737) 42)

$61 $61

$828 $1,407

(560) (441)

(262) (940)

$6 $26

2019 31

17
2018 31
11
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TMCC TMNA
TMNA
31
2017 2018 2019
0.52% 0.44% 0.39%
0.39% 0.31% 0.23%
0.47% 0.39%% 0.34%
1.53% 1.46% 1.45%
$7,787 $7,497 $7,281
)
0.28% 0.32% 0.34%
0.25% 0.27% 0.27%
0.27% 0.30% 0.31%
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1.46 2019 1.45
2018 7,497 2019 7,281
2018 0.30 2019
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31
2017 2018 2019
$535 $622 $597
(574) (516) (464)
79 90 97
582 401 372
$622 $597 $602
31
2017 2018 2019
0.68% 0.66% 0.70%
0.40% 0.35% 0.27%
0.58% 0.55% 0.55%
2018 31 597
602 2018 2019
0.55
0.66 2019 0.70
2018 0.35 2019 0.27
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OooooOodd
2018 31 2019 31
$27,396 $27,313 1.80% $25,374 $25,273 2.62%
( MTN
) 35,465 35,313 2.35% 33,540 33,397 2.82%
( EMTN
) 15,900 15,812 1.65% 15,916 15,810 1.90%
6,281 6,277 2.54% 6,045 6,041 3.12%
85,042 84,715 2.05% 80,875 80,521 2.60%
13,657 13,638 1.95% 12,421 12,401 2.62%
$98,699 $98,353 2.04% $93,296 $92,922 2.60%
D) MTN EMTN
2018 31 $27,396 $35,465 $15,900 $6,281 $85,042
- 9,541 2,306 1,929 13,776
(2,022) (11,466) (1,273) (2,142) (16,903)
- - (1,017) (23) (1,040)
2019 31 $25,374 $33,540 $15,916 $6,045 $80,875
2019 30
$6,089 $2,050 $- $6 $8,145
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SEC
2021
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EMTN 2018 EMTN
50.0
19.1
EMTN
EMTN
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SEC

2018 31 $13,657
7,522

(8,758)

2019 31 $12,421
2019 30 $-

TMCC
TMCC
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SEC

364
2018 11

TMCC

2021 12

SEC

5.0

2020
5.0

2018 31

2022
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2019

2024

2019
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31

TCPR
364
5.0

31



T™MCC
5.5
2021 2.5

31 2019 31

2018 12 T™MCC ™S 2022
TFS
TMcC
TFS
TFS 100
TFS 10
2019

TFS ( )TFS

(

)

2022

31
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2.8

90,204

2019

31
2020

2019
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TMcC
200

2018

5.0
31



1
2
TFS TMCC
TMCC
TMCC
TMCC
TMCC
TMCC

TFS

30

TFS TFS
TFS

TFS

100
100,000

TMCC
TMCC

TMCC TFS

TMCC TMCC

TMCC

TFS

TFS
TMCC
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31

2018

31
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OooooOodd
11—
2019 31
2019 31
2019
$94,147 $45,596 $29,535 $13,044 $5,972
5,540 1,644 1,843 720 1,333
450 165 452 115 (282)
144 22 39 22 61
6 6 - - -
$100, 287 $47,433 $31,869 $13,901 $7,084
204 170 851
2019 31
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100
ALCO
12
100
2018 31 2019 31 100bp
100bp 100bp
2018 31 $4.3 $(4.0)
2019 31 $(9.7) $10.1
100bp 2018

31 2019 31
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LIBOR
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2019
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1SDA

1SDA
2018 31 2019 31
$5 $10
58 53
$63 $63
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2018 31

AAA AA A BBB BB
$2,821 $2,798 $2,167 $631 $- $- $-
10 11 2 8 1 - -
475 474 - - 474 - -
52 52 - 52 - - -
203 201 - 22 85 92 2
69 70 43 13 9 - 5
39 39 6 5 17 6 5
2,196 2,184 203 214 1,701 43 23
$5,865 $5,829 $2,421 $945 $2,287 $141 $35

2019 31

AAA AA A BBB BB
$213 $212 $205 $2 $- $- $5
9 11 2 8 1 - -
50 50 - - 50 - -
70 70 - 70 - - -
160 162 - 14 62 81 5
75 75 40 3 2 5 25
52 53 12 2 17 3 19
$629 $633 $259 $99 $132 $89 $54
$2,275 $- $412 $1,316 $522 $25
$2,908 $259 $511 $1,448 $611 $79
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TFS
TMCC 12—
TMCC 50,000,000,000
T™MCC
2018 14

(The Bank of New York Mellon, acting through its London branch)
E14 5AL
(One Canada Square, Canary Wharf, London E14 5AL, United Kingdom)

T™MCC 50,000,000,000
TMCC TMCC

2017
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(The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV, Luxembourg Branch)
L-2453 2-4
(2-4 rue Eugéne Ruppert, L-2453 Luxembourg)

(Vertigo Building - Polaris)

T™MCC
TMCC  TMCC TCPR
2023 364
5.0 5.0
11 TMCC TCPR
2022 2024 364
5.0

T™MCC
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100,000 91,500 8,500
91,500
50,000,000 915,000,000
1996 5,000 91,500 54 1,700 991 3,110
"
75024
91,500 100
6565

THCC THCC 2016 2017

2018 2019 MCC  TFSIC

10
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TMCC

)
1961 1990 T™S 2007 10 2013
T™S
2012
2013
2013 2016
2013
2017 12
2016 2017 12
2016 2017
TFS 2016
TFS 2017 TFS
2016 TFSIC
2016
TMCC 2016
2018 TMCC 2018
TMCC
1970 10 2003 TMCC 2012 2014
2014 2015 T™S
2015 2017 12
2017 12
2019
2019 2019 TMCC
2017 12
2019 TMCC
2019 T™MCC
1971 30 1993 2007
2012 12
2013 2015 12
2016 2019
TFS
2019 TMCC
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1963 1985 SMBC
SMBC 2010 2012
2012
2013 2013 2014
2014 2015
2015
2017 12 SMBC
2018 TFSIC
TFS
2018 2019
2019
2018 TMCC
1955 10 14 1982 TMS 2000 2001
2001 2002
™S 2002 12 2004
2004 2005
2005 2006
2006
2017 ™S ™S
2006 2007 11 ™S
2007 11 ™S
2012 2013
™S 2008
2013
2013 2019
2019
2013 TMNA
2006 TMCC
1959 18 1981 11 ™S T™S 2005
2007
2007 2012
2012 2017
2017
TMNA ™S
2017 TMCC

TMCC

TMCC
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TMCC
1961
1971 30
1970 10
1964 10 1993 TMCC 2009
2011
2011 2014
TMCC
2014
2017 T™S
2017
2018 12 TMCC
2018
12 TMCC
1966 1990 T™S 2013 12
2015 ™S
2015 2018 12
T™S
2018
12 TMCC
TMCC
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1A
1A TMCC
IT
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TMCC
ARA
TMCC
1A 1A
14

1A TMCC 1A
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31
2018 2019
$10,181 $9,947
450 -
416 445
79 63
$11,126 $10,455
10-K
10-Q
36
SEC
TMCC
2019 31
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2018
2019
TMCC 2019 2019
4,912,072 2019
2015 ™S ™S
2015 2015
™S
™S
2015 TMCC TCPR
™S
T™S
120 60
60
50
™S ™S
62

55
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T™S
25
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2015
TMNA
a
b
TMNA
59.5
60
T™S
2015
™S ™S

™S
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TMNA
TMNA
2015 T™S
SERP
SERP
SERP
b SERP
c TMS
100
T™MS TMNA
T™S
TMNA
TMCC
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DCP
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15

TMNA
TMNA

SERP

TMCC
SERP
a SERP

T™MS

100
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DCP DCP
T™MS TMNA
2017 DCP
TMCC
DCP 2016 TMNA
T™S
PULTIP TMCC
PULTIP
DCP
12 31
PULTIP
2016 PULTIP
TMCC PULTIP

2016 TMNA
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2018 2019 31 2019 31
TMCC 1934
2019 SEC 10-K
38 5 — 131
23 103
193
SEC
134 2019

108.34
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31
2017 2018 2019

7,720 |\ 836,385 |$ 8,167 [\ 884,813 |$ 8,694 |\ 941,908
1,850 200,429 1,974 213,863 2,235 242,140
476 51,570 576 62,404 711 77,030
10,046 | 1,088,384 10,717 | 1,161,080 11,640 | 1,261,078
6,853 742,454 7,041 762,822 6,909 748,521
1,754 190,028 1,851 200,537 2,747 297,610
1,439 155,901 1,825 197,721 1,984 214,947
804 87,105 882 95,556 904 97,939
396 42,903 257 27,843 292 31,635
2,639 285,909 2,964 321,120 3,180 344,521
582 63,054 401 43,444 372 40,302
1,277 138,350 1,357 147,017 1,385 150,051
371 40,194 425 46,045 446 48,320
2,230 241,598 2,183 236,506 2,203 238,673
409 44,311 781 84,614 977 105,848
142 15,384 (2,629)| (284,826) 182 19,718
267 |\ 28,927 |$ 3,410 |\ 369,439 |$ 795 |\ 86,130
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31
2017 2018 2019
$ 267 |\ 28,027 |$ 3,410 |\ 369,439 | $ 795 |\ 86,130
2017
) (108) | 6,142 11 1,192
2018 650
2019 ()
(542)
8 o6 87 39|  (15,059) )| @709 9 975
2018 16
1,733
2019 ()
(325)
40| (15,168) 6| .850) 20 2,167
$ 127 |\ 13,759 | $ 3,356 | \ 363,589 | $ 815 | \ 88,297
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2018 31 2019 31
$ 3,540 [ \ 383,524 | $ 2,198 | \ 238,131
1,219 132,066 985 106,715
5,829 631,514 2,908 315,053
69,647 7,545,556 70,517 7,639,812
38,697 4,192,433 37,927 4,109,011
1,614 174,861 1,981 214,622
$ 120,546 | \ 13,059,954 [ $ 116,516 [ \ 12,623,343
$ 98,353 | \ 10,655,564 | $ 92,922 | \ 10,067,169
5,326 577,019 5,452 590,670
3,087 431,952 4,564 494,464
107,666 11,664,534 102,938 11,152,303
11
2018 2019 31
100,000 915 99,131 915 99,131
91,500

2 217 2 217
29) (3,142) 3 325
11,992 1,299,213 12,658 1,371,368
12,880 1,395,419 13,578 1,471,041
$ 120,546 | \ 13,059,954 [ $ 116,516 [ \ 12,623,343

2018 31 2019 31
$ 11,927 | \ 1,292,171 | $ 11,075 | \ 1,199,866
5,706 618,188 5,307 574,960
125 13,543 192 20,801
$ 17,758 | \ 1,923,902 | $ 16,574 | \ 1,795,627
$ 13,638 | \ 1,477,541 | $ 12,401 | \ 1,343,524
10 1,083 12 1,300
$ 13,648 | \ 1,478,624 | $ 12,413 | \ 1,344,824
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2016 31 $ 915 | $ 2| $ 165 | $ 8,315 | $ 9,397
— — — 267 267
— — (140) — (140)
2017 31 $ 915 | $ 2| $ 25 |'$ 8,582 | $ 9,524
_ — — 3,410 3,410
— — (54) — (54)
2018 31 $ 915 | $ 2|3 9| $ 11,992 | $ 12,880
— — 12 (122) (110)
— — — 795 795
— — 20 — 20
— — — @) Q)
2019 31 $ 915 | $ 2| $ 3|s 12,658 | $ 13,578
2016 31 \ 99,131 | \ 217 | \ 17,876 [\ 900,847 [ \ 1,018,071
— — — 28,927 28,927
— — (15,168) — (15,168)
2017 31 \ 99,131 | \ 217 | \ 2,709 [\ 929,774 [ \ 1,031,830
— — — 369,439 369,439
— — (5,850) — (5,850)
2018 31 \ 99,131 | \ 217 | \ (3,142)[\ 1,299,213 [ \ 1,395,419
— — 1,300 (13,217) (11,917)
— — — 86,130 86,130
— — 2,167 — 2,167
— — — (758) (758)
2019 31 \ 99,131 | \ 217 | \ 325 [\ 1,371,368 | \ 1,471,041
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31

2017 2018 2019
267 | \ 28,927 [$ 3,410 | \ 369,439 795 [ \ 86,130
6,916 749,279 7,123 771,706 7,023 760,872
@779 92,737y  (2,003)| (217,005)|  (2,346)| (254,166)
582 63,054 401 43,444 372 40,302
625 67,713 607 65,762 617 66,846
@os|  (76,271) 1,502 162,727 938)[  (101,623)
(226)|  (24,485) (41) (4,442) ©) 17)
17 1,842 (10) (1,083) — —
@e7)|  (18,093) 117) (12,676) (86) (9,317)
®) G325)  (2,578)|  (279,301) 156 16,901
39 4,225 (40) (4,334) 20 2,167
347 37,594 81 8,776 324 35,102
5,914 640,723 8,335 903,014 5,935 642,998
3.702)| (401,075)|  (7.137)| (773.223)|  (1,251)| (135,533)
875 94,798 1,376 149,076 1,740 188,512
3,656 396,091 5,580 604,537 2,457 266,191
(25,497)| (2,762,345)|  (25,713)| (2,785,746)| (24,686)| (2,674,481)
24,324 | 2,635,262 24,100 | 2,610,994 24,082 | 2,609,044
(1,859)|  (201,404) 388 42,036 (89) (9,642)
(17,947)| (1,944,378)|  (16,575)| (1,795,736)| (16,068)| (1,740,807)
10,230 | 1,108,318 9,821 [ 1,064,007 11,395 | 1,234,534
— — — — (569) (61,645)
— — — — 36 3,900
354 38,352 755 81,797 — —
10|  (@1,917) (79) (8,559) (63) (6,825)
9,676)| (1,048,298)|  (7,484)| (810,817)|  (3,016)| (326,753)
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OooooOodd
31
2017 2018 2019

28,817 | 3,122,034 21,768 | 2,358,345 21,153 | 2,291,716
(23,463)| (2,541,981)|  (23,814)| (2,580,000)|  (23,624)| (2,559,424)
(12) (1,300) 664 71,938 (2,022)| (219,063)
(6) (650) 5 542 0)) @17
5,336 578,102 @.,37)|  (149,184) (4,495)| (486,988)
1,574 170,527 (26)|  (56,987) (1,576)| (170,744)
3,711 402,050 5,285 572,577 4,759 515,590
5,285 | \ 572,577 | $ 4,759 | \ 515,500 | $ 3,183 | \ 344,846
1,406 | \ 152,326 | $ 1,722 | \ 186,561 | $ 2,239 | \ 242,573
53|\ 5,742| s s\ 87| s 42| \ 4,550
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)
TMCC
TFS 100
TFSIC 100
TFS T™C 100 TFS
T™C T™MCC
T™CC

100
™IS

™IS

T™MIS
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2019 31 23
11
2019 31 26
2019 16
US GAAP
12
TMCC 100

VIE

US GAAP

2018
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ASU 2014-09
10-K

ASU  2014-09

ASU 2014-09

ASU 2014-09

2019 31
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ASU 2014-09
ASU  2014-09
2018
2018 2018
31
$ 1,614 73 $ 1,687
$ 5,32 (36) $ 5,290
3,987 219 4,206
11,992 (110) 11,882
2019 31
$ 1,981 72) $ 1,909
$ 5,452 38 $ 5,490
4,564 (225) 4,339
12,658 115 12,773
ASU  2014-09
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ooOoooOoo
ASU 2016-01 ASU 2016-01
ASU
2018 12
ASU 2016-15 230
ASU 2016-18 230
2018
2017 Tax Cut and Jobs Act of 2017 TCJIA
stranded tax effects
ASU 2018-02 220
2016 FASB
ASU 2016-
02 842 FASB
ASU
2019

120
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2016 FASB ASU 2016-13 326
FASB
ASU 2020
2017 FASB
ASU 2017-08
ASU 2019
2017 FASB ASU 2017-12
815
ASU 2019 2018 30
2018 FASB ASU 2018-13
820 ASU 2020
2018 FASB
ASU  2018-15
ASU 2020
2018 10 FASB
ASU 2018-17 810 ASU 2021
2019 FASB ASU 2019-04 326 815
825 ASU

2020
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50

50

2018
2018
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2018 31

2,821 $ — $ @23 $ 2,798

10 1 — 11

475 — @ 474

52 — — 52

203 1 ®) 201

38 1 — 39

1 1 — 2

30 — @ 29

39 — — 39

2,196 11 (23) 2,184

5,865 $ 15 $ (1) $ 5,829
2019 31

213 $ 2 $ @ s 212

9 2 — 11

50 — — 50

70 — — 70

160 3 @ 162

35 — — 35

1 — — 1

39 — — 39

52 1 — 53

629 $ 8 $ @ 3 633

$ 2,275

$ 2,908
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250
90
2019 31 12 12
2018 31 12 12
31
2017 2018 2019
$ 226 $ 41 $ (12)
$ 14
2019 31
$ 177 $ 177
102 102
10 146 147
10 77 79
127 128
$ 629 $ 633
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90

2019
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2018 31 2019 31
$ 41,265 $ 42,621
12,130 11,318
17,420 17,696
70,815 71,635
630 695
(1,335) (1,314)
(312) (304)
(151) (195)
(463) (499)
$ 69,647 $ 70,517

31

2020 $ 14,180 $ 12,957
2021 12,866 1,519
2022 10,934 924
2023 8,618 588
2024 5,238 646
2,103 1,062
$ 53,939 $ 17,696
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2018 2019
31 31

29 $ 52,559 $ 53,047

30 59 613 657
60 89 158 162
90 65 73
$ 53,395 $ 53,939

2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019
31 31 31 31 31 31

$ 9,451 $ 9,155 $ 4,070 $ 4,019 $ 2,118 $ 2,448

946 1,127 484 554 105 70
75 152 29 84 33 63
41 6 47 14 21 4

$ 10,513 $ 10,440 $ 4,630 $ 4,671 $ 2,277 $ 2,585
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120

2018 31

90

59 60 89 90
29

613 $ 158 $ 65 $ 836 $52,559 $53,395 $ 46
— — — — 10,513 10,513 —
_ _ — — 4,630 4,630 —
— — — — 2,277 2,277 —

613 $ 158  $ 65 $ 836 $69,9799 $70,815 $ 46

2019 31

90

59 60 89 90
29

657 $ 162  $ 73 % 892 $53,047 $53,939 $ 47

— — 1 1 10,439 10,440 —
— — — — 4,671 4,671 —
— — 4 4 2,581 2,585 —

657 % 162 $ 8 3% 897 $ 70,738 $71,635 $ 47
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2018 2019 2018 2019
31 31 31 31
$ 107 $ 161 $ 14 $ 28
86 93 5 11
55 67 51 60
$ 248 $ 321 $ 70 $ 99
$ 83 $ 130
142 152
22 20
$ 247 $ 302
$ 222 $ 231
$ 222 $ 231
190 291
228 245
77 87
$ 717 $ 854
2019 2018
2019 2018 31
329 249
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2019 2018 31

2019 2018

2019 2018

2019 2018
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2019 2018 31
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2018 31 2019 31
$ 42,863 $ 42,869
7,869 7,532
50,732 50,401
(224) (225)
(1,700) (2,085)
9.,977) (10,061)
(134) (103)
$ 38,697 $ 37,927

31
2020 $ 6,025
2021 3,869
2022 1,467
2023 156
2024 4
$ 11,521
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120
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2018

2018
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31
2017 2018 2019
$ 535 $ 622 $ 597
(574) (516) (464)
79 90 97
582 401 372
$ 622 $ 597 $ 602
2018 31
$ 344 $ 123 $ 467
(355) — (355)
50 — 50
273 28 301
31 $ 312 $ 151 $ 463
$ — $ 70 $ 70
$ 312 $ 81 $ 393
31 $ 53,395 $ 17,420 $ 70,815
$ — $ 495 $ 495

$ 53,395 $ 16,925 $ 70,320
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222 2018 31
2018 31
TMNA 1,030
146 TMNA
2019 31

2018 $ 312 $ 151 $ 463
(330) — (330)
50 — 50
272 44 316
2019 31 $ 304 $ 195 $ 499
$ — $ 99 $ 99
$ 304 $ 96 $ 400
2019 31 $ 53,939 $ 17,696 $ 71,635
$ — $ 623 $ 623
$ 53,939 $ 17,073 $ 71,012

231 2019 31

2019 31
TMNA
1,091 132

TMNA
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2018 30

1SDA

2019 31
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2018 31
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— — $ 71,464 $ 872 71,464 872
— — 847 1 847 1
119 8 7,248 477 7,367 485
119 8 $ 79,559 $ 1,350 79,678 1,358
(560)

(737)

61

— — $ 41,513 $ 628 41,513 628
— — 5,863 200 5,863 200
— — $ 47,376 $ 828 47,376 828
(560)

(262)

6

11

137/311



2019

31
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2019 31
$ 49,254 472
2,771 72
$ 52,025 544
(441)
42)
61
$ 57,593 622
9,796 785
$ 67,389 1,407
(441)
(940)
26
17
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31
2017 2018 2019

$ 1,570 $ 1,970 $ 2,559
18 67) (53)

1,552 1,903 2,506
(652) 1,344 (1,078)

880 (1,306) 1,015

(26) (90) 304

$ 1,754 $ 1,851 $ 2,747
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2021
2022
2023
2024
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2049

2018 2019 31
$ 85,042 2.05 $ 80,875 $ 80,521 2.60
13,657 1.95 12,421 12,401 2.62
$ 98,699 2.04 $ 93,296 $ 92,922 2.60
$ 45,500
15,028
14,086
8,888
3,856
5,938
(374)
$ 92,922
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2019 2018 31 25.3
27.3

364
2018 11 TMCC TCPR
2020 2022 2024 364
5.0 5.0
5.0

2019 31
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TMCC
2022
5.5

2019 2018

2018 12 TMcC 2022
™S

VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE
VIE

VIE

VIE

31

VIE

2019
2.8

VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE

VIE
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31 TMCC 2020 2021
200 2.5
5.0
2019 31
VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE



VIE

1,520
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VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE
2018 31
VIE VIE
$ 729 12,130 $ 11,927 $ 7 $ 9,958 7
297 7,869 5,706 118 3,680 3
$ 1,026 19,999 $ 17,633 $ 125 $ 13,638 10
2019 31
VIE VIE
$ 630 11,318 $ 11,075 $ 6 $ 9,202 10
355 7,532 5,307 186 3,199 2
$ 985 18,850 $ 16,382 $ 192 $ 12,401 12
VIE TMCC
VIE TMCC TMCC
VIE 2019 2018 31 1,486
TMCC VIE
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TMCC

VIE
VIE
VIE
TMCC
TMCC
TMNA
TDIG
TMNA
VIE
2018 31
2019 2018
VIE

2019 2018 31
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TMNA
TMCC
TMCC
2015
2015
25 120
60
2019 2018 2017
TMCC
30
66.67
100 25
2015
2019 2018 2017 T™MCC
TMNA
55 10

2019 2018 2017 T™MCC
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TFSIC TMCC TMNA TFSIC TMCC
TMCC
TMCC
T™CC
TFSIC TMCC
31
2017 2018 2019

$ 136 $ (45) $ (55)

2 (10) 76

7 3 4

145 (52) 25

©) (2,625) 207
5 48 (49)
1 — €H)

(©) 2,577) 157

$ 142 $  (2.629) $ 182
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TCJA

2018

2017

2.9

TCJIA
31.6

2019

2019

31
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31
2017 2018 2019
35.0 31.6 21.0
3.6 4.8 4.6
— (371.6) —
— — (2.8)
2.2) 0.4 1.4
1.5 (0.1) (1.3)
3.2) a.mn (1.5)
34.7 (336.6) 18.6
35 21 2018
TCJA 12 TCJA
2019 2018

2017
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31
2018 2019
$ 5,642 $ 7,121
856 847
185 44
244 288
$ 6,927 $ 8,300
420 361
186 192
993 2,297
31 22
1,630 2,872
(29) (24)
$ 1,601 $ 2,848
) $ 5,326 $ 5,452
) 2019 31
2018 31
2018 31
857 109 2019 31
2.1 147 2018
2038 2019
2028
2020
2019 2018 31

24 29

148/311



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)

oOoOooodn
TCJIA
2019 2018 31 233 223
2019 2018 31 TMNA
2019 2018 31
TMCC TMCC
TFSIC TFSB
2019 2018 2017 31
12
2019 2018 2017
2019 31 2019 2018 IRS

2017 IRS 2019
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11
2018 31 2019 31
$ 1,286 $ 1,378
162 144
1,448 1,522
100 100
$ 1,548 $ 1,622
T™MCC
2032
TMNA 2019 2018
30 2017 27 2019
2018 31 97 105
2019 31
31
2020 $ 22
2021 19
2022 20
2023 12
2024 10
61

$ 144
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10

TMCC

31

2018

TMCC

2031

31

10

TMCC

TMCC

2032

2028

10
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2029 50 2030
TMCC
TMcC
2019
31

2019 2018 31
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2015 28
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31
2017 2018 2019
1,374 $ 1,590 $ 1,930
— $ 12) $ (24)
95 $ 95 $ 9
149 $ 182 $ 181
9 $ 13 $ 16
73 80 $ 95
— (€) $ €))
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2018 31 2019 31
$ 255 $ —
$ 52 $ 70
$ 191 $ 150
(1,279) $ (1,257)
$ 6 1
(1,682) $ (2,062)
68 $ 601
310 $ 11
328 $ 337
74 $ 147
18 $ 16
TMCC  TMNA 2019 2018
31 TMNA 171 279
TMNA
TMNA
2019 31
2018 31
TMCC TFS TMCC
TMCC TFS TMCC
TFS TMCC
TMCC
TFS

TCPR TMCC TFS
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TMCC TFS
2019 2018 31
8.5 3.6 2019 2018 31
5.4 5.6
2019 2018 31
2019 TMCC S.A. de C.V.
1.5
TMCC
TMCC
TMCC
11
TMCC TFSB TMCC  TFSB
60
2019 2018 31 TMCC
23 30

TMCC

TMCC TMNA

TMCC

TMCC  TFSB TFSB TMCC TFSB

TMCC  TFSB TMCC TMCC TFSB
TMCC TFSB TFS TMCC
TMCC

TMCC
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TMCC TCPR TMNA

TMCC  TMNA

2032
TMCC  TMNA ™S
2018
11
TMCC
TMNA
TMCC TMNA
TMCC TMNA
TMNA
2018
TMCC
TMNA TMCC
TMNA
T™MIS TMNA
TMNA
T™MIS TMNA
™IS

99
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2019 2018 31

120
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2018 31
$ 2,774 % 24 8 — 3 — $ 2,798
— 11 — — 11
— 474 — — 474
— 52 — — 52
15 186 — — 201
— 39 — — 39
— — 2 — 2
— — 29 — 29
— — 39 — 39
660
1,524 — — — 1,524
4,313 786 70 — 5,829
— 872 — — 872
— 1 — — 1
_ 485 — — 485
— — — (1,297) (1,297)
— 1,358 — (1,297) 61
4,313 2,144 70 (1,297) 5,890
— (607) @1) — (628)
— (200) — — (200)
— — — 822 822
— (807) @1 822 6)
$ 4,313 $ 1,337  $ 49 % (475) $ 5,884
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2019 31
194 $ 18 8 — % — 3 212
— 11 — — 11
— 50 — — 50
— 70 — — 70
— 162 — — 162
— 35 — — 35
— — 1 — 1
— — 39 — 39
— — 53 — 53
194 346 93 — 633
689
1,586 — — — 1,586
1,586 — — — 2,275
1,780 346 93 — 2,908
_ 471 1 — 472
— 72 — — 72
— — — (483) (483)
— 543 1 (483) 61
1,780 889 94 (483) 2,969
— (622) — — (622)
— (785) — — (785)
— — — 1,381 1,381
— (1,407) — 1,381 (26)
1,780 $  (518) $ 94 $ 898 $ 2,943
2019 2018 31
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31
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2018 31
)

2 3 8 3 39§ 318 80 G $ (6% (67 $ 13
— — — — — — 7 7 7
— — 5 30 35 — — — 35
— ©) @13) 22 44 16) 55 39 ®)
— 1 — — 1 — — — 1
@ — — — @ — — — @
— 5 — 5 318 39 8 70 @D $ — % (@) s 49

— % — 3 — 5 —
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2019

31
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2019 31
C )

31 39 70 $ 1) $ 49
— — — 29 29
— 1 1 — 1
16 32 48 — 48
— (O] (O] — (O]
©) (15) 22) ) 29
40 53 93 1 $ 94

29 $ 29

2019 2018 31
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2018 31
$ 52,374 $ — % — $ 52,080 $ 52,081
10,365 — — 10,413 10,413
4,492 — — 4,409 4,409
2,222 — — 2,197 2,197
$ 84,715 $ — $ 82,754 $ 2,31 $ 85,095
13,638 — — 13,588 13,588

2019 31
$ 53,013 $ — 8 — $ 53,247 $ 53,247
10,293 — — 10,369 10,369
4,550 — — 4,534 4,534
2,510 — — 2,554 2,554
$ 80,521 $ — $ 79,05 $ 2,313 $ 81,369
12,401 — — 12,428 12,428

2019 2018 31

148 189
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14

™IS

2017 31
$ 10,046 $ — $ — $ 10,046
6,853 — — 6,853

1,759 — ) 1,754
1,434 — 5 1,439

— 804 — 804

337 64 ) 396

1,771 868 — 2,639

582 — — 582

979 298 — 1,277

— 371 — 371

1,561 669 — 2,230

210 199 — 409

67 75 — 142

$ 143 $ 124 $ — $ 267
$ 116,242 $ 4,476 $  (1,083) $ 119,635
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2018 31
$ 10,717 $ — $ — $ 10,717
7,041 — — 7,041
1,863 — 12) 1,851
1,813 — 12 1,825
— 882 — 882
140 129 12) 257
1,953 1,011 — 2,964
401 — — 401
1,028 329 — 1,357
— 425 — 425
1,429 754 — 2,183
524 257 — 781
(2,654) 25 — (2,629)
$ 3,178 $ 232 $ — $ 3,410
$ 116,942 $ 4,601 $  (1,087) $ 120,546
2019 31
$ 11,640 $ — $ — $ 11,640
6,909 — — 6,909
2,769 — 22) 2,747
1,962 — 22 1,984
— 904 — 904
188 126 22) 292
2,150 1,030 — 3,180
372 — — 372
1,038 347 — 1,385
— 446 — 446
1,410 793 — 2,203
740 237 — 977
147 35 — 182
$ 593 $ 202 $ — $ 795
$ 112,615 $ 5,066 $  (1,165) $ 116,516
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120
2019 31 84 ASU
2014-09
2019 31
2018 2019 31 2.2
2019 652
2020 673

1.6

2019 2018 31 T™MIS
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15

2018 31

$ 1,981 $ 2,016 $ 2,068 $ 2,102
474 490 498 512

143 141 140 152

2,598 2,647 2,706 2,766
1,681 1,719 1,778 1,863

448 452 428 523

469 476 500 380

216 221 220 225

88 56 66 47

773 753 786 652

85 127 108 81

313 337 323 384

114 102 100 109

512 566 531 574

261 187 255 78

96 70 (2,821) 26

$ 165 $ 117 $ 3,076 $ 52
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2019 31

$ 2,126 $ 2,167 $ 2,212 $ 2,189
535 547 578 575

175 176 178 182

2,836 2,890 2,968 2,946
1,766 1,662 1,717 1,764

682 702 699 664

388 526 552 518

224 226 226 228

40 56 68 128

652 808 846 874

89 67 110 106

324 348 347 366

125 112 106 103

538 527 563 575

114 281 283 299

22 87 69 4

$ 92 $ 194 $ 214 $ 295
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Dollars in millions)

Years ended March 31,

2019 2018 2007
Fmancing revemses:
Operaung lease 5 g694 5 B 167 S 1.720
Retail 2,335 1974 1,850
Diealer 7 ST 476
Total financing revenues 11,640 10,717 100,06
Depreciation on operating leases 6,509 7041 6,853
Interest expense 2,747 1,851 1,754
Met Minancing revenuss 1,984 1,325 1,439
Insurance earned premiums and conteact revenies 4 .} 04
Investment and other income, net 2 257 3946
MNet linancing revenues and other revenues 3,180 2,964 2,639
Expenses:
Provision for eredt losses 3n 401 582
Operanng and administranive 1,385 1357 1,277
Insurance losses and loss adjustment expenses 444 435 3T
Total expenses 2203 2183 2230
Income before income taxes 9717 781 el
Prowision (benefit) for income taxes 182 (2,629) 142
Met meome s 795 8 3410 8 267
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Years ended March 31,
2019 018 017
MNet moome 5 ™5 5 J4l0 5 267

Orher comprehensive meame (loss). net of tax:
Mot unrealized pains {losses) on available-for-salbe

marketable securities [net of wx (provision) benefit

of (55), %6 and S0, respectively] 1§ (29} {1y
Reclassificaton adjustment for net losses (pams) on

available-for-sale marketable secunties included 0

investment and other mcome, net [net of tax

{benehit) provision of ($3), $16 and S87, respectively] 9 (25} (139)
Cribver comprelensive mcome (loss) 20 (54} (140}
Comprehensive incoms 5 815 S 33 5 127

Refier 1o the accompanying MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statemenis.
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Dollars in millions)

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalems
Restncted cash and cash equivalents
Investments i nurketable secunties
Fimance receivables, net
Investments m operating lexses, net
Orhver assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND SHARENOLDER'S EQUITY
Dbt

Deferred income axes

Otlver liakbilities

Total habilines

Commitments and contingencies {Refer to Note 11)

Sharcholder's equity:

Capital stock, no par value [ 100,000 shares authorized; 91,500 1ssued
and ouistanding) at March 31, 20019 and 2018

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated other comprehensive income (lnss)

Retained eamings

Total shareholder's equity

Total Linbilities and sharcholder's equity

March 31, Mlarch 31,
2019 018

2196 % 3,540
O8s 1,219
2.908 5829
TUS1T 69,647
a7 8607
1.981 1614
116516 5§ 120,546
Qe 3 98,353
5452 5,326
4564 3,987
02,938 107 66
915 915
2 2

i (29)
12,658 11,992
13,578 12 880
116516 % 120 546

The fallowing sable presents the assets and hiabilines of our consolidated vanable interest entities {Refer to Note 8),

ASSETS

Frmunce recevables, net
Investments m operating leases, net
Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Dhebt

Orver liabilities
Total linbilities

Refer to the sceompanying Notes to Consolidated Finuncial Statements.
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March 31, Mlarch 31,
2019 2018
1078 % 11,927
5,307 5706
192 125
16,574 5§ 17,758
12401 3 13,638
12 1]
12413 3 13 648
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
(Dollars in millions)

Accumulated
Additionl other
Cagaital pad-in eomprehensive  Retained

stock  capital  imcome (loss)  earmings Todl
Balance at March 31, 2016 5 15 3 2 5 165 £ 8315 § 0307
Met imeome - - - 267 267
Chibver comprehensive loss, net of tax - - {140 - (L
Bulance at March 31, 2017 5 915 3 z-3 25 § X582 5 9524
Net moome - - - 3400 3410
bber comprehensive loss, met of tax SRR, . PO e s - 134)
Ralance a1 March 31, 2018 5 315 5 25 (29785 11992 % 12R&0D
Cumulative-effect of change in accounting policy - - 1% (122} (B0
MNet mcome - - - 95 795
Crtheer comprehensive imcome, net of tax - - 20 - 20
Dividends, net of tix - - - {7} {7y
Balance at March 31, 2019 3 215 § 25 I8 12658 5 13578

Refer to the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Dollars in millions)

Wears Ended March 31,
2019 201% 2007
Cosh Nows from opemting activities:
Nt moome 5 Tes & Jam s 267
Adpustments 1o recencile net income 1o nel cash provided by operating
acrivitics:
Depreciation and amonuation 7023 7,123 G416
Recognition of deferred ingcome (2.346) [20K12) [1.77%)
Provision for eredil losses in Al il
Amartization of delerred costs 17 &07 623
Fareign currency and other adjustments 1o the earrying valse of
diebt, net (938} 1,502 (T
Mt gains from investments in marketable sccuntics (2} (41 (226])
Mt changge m:
Denvative asets . (o 17
Oiher assets and acerued micnest (86 (117 (167
Diefeered income taxes 156 25780 )]
Dierivative liabilities 20 (403 39
Ohter habalities 24 Al M7
Met cash provided by operating activities 5035 53335 5914
Cash Nows from investing sctivitses:
Pusclease of investments in markesable securitics {1,231} (7.037) (3,702
Proceeds from sales ol invesiments in marketahle sceurities 1,740 1,376 B75
Preceeds from manties of investiments m marketable securities 2457 5,580 3656
Agquesition of finanee recenvables (24,6861 (25,7135 (25497 )
Collection of linance recevables X2 A T{T] e il |
Met chamge in wholesale and eertain working capital receivahles {R9) ] [1.859)
Acquisition of invesiments in operating leases [RECELE.A] (16,575 (17,5947
Disposals of investments in opermung leases 11.3%5 0821 10,230
Long term boans o affilaies (5] - .
Payments on lang term boans from aililinies kL - -
Med change i financing support provided 1o alfiliates - 755 354
Oiber, net i 63y (19 _ (1)
Mel eash used in investing activilies (34016} (74840 (LT
Cash Nows from financing activitics:
Progeeds from ssuance of debt 21,153 21,76 23817
Payments on debi 123.624) (23814) (23463)
Med chamnge in commereial paper (2022 fiih (12
Net change in financing suppon provided by affiliates (23 5 (61
Met cash (used in) provided by financing activities (4,495) (1,377} 5336
Met (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash and
cash equivalents {1,576} (526) 1.574
Cnsh and eash equivalents and resirniciad cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the penod 4,759 5288 ER]
Cash and eash equivalents and restricied cash and cash equivalents at the
end of the period 5 1183 & 4759 8 1£
Supplemental disclosures:
Inieress paid, net 5 2.83% 5 L7235 1.406
Incomie taxes paid, net 5 42 % 8% 51

Refer to the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in millions)

Note | — Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies
Nature of Operations

Toyeta Motor Credit Corporation (“TMCC™) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Toyota Financial Services Intemational
Corporation ("TFSIC™), a Califomia corporation, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Toyota Financial Services
Corporation (“TFSC™), a Japunese corporation. TFSC, in turm, is 1 wholly-owned subsidiary of Tovota Motor
Corporation (“TMC"), a Japanese corporation. TFSC manages TMC s worldwide financial services operations.
References herein to the “Company™, “we”, “our”, and *us” denote TMCC and its consolidated subsidiaries. TMCC is
marketed under the brands of Tovota Financial Services and Lexus Financial Services,

We provide a variety of finance and imsurance products to suthenzed Tovota and Lexus dealers or dealer groups and,
to a lesser exfent, other domestic and impon franchise dealers (collectively referred 1o as “dealers™) and their
customers in the United Soates of America (excluding Hawaii) (the “11.5,”) and Puerto Rico, Our husiness is
substantially dependent upon the sale of Toyoda and Lexus vehicles

Our products fall primarily imto the followimg categorics:

. Finange - We aequire retail installment sales contracts from dealers in the U.S. and Pueno Rico (“retail
contracts” ) and leasing contriscts accounted for as operating leases (“lease contracts™) from dealers in the
U.S. We colleetively refer to our retail and lease contracts as the “consumer portfolios.” We also provide
dealer financing, including wholesale financing, working capital loans, revolving hines of credic and real
estate financing to dealers in the LS. and Puerto Rico, We collectively refer to our dealer financing
porfolio &s the “dealer ponfolio,”

. Insnranee - Through Tovota Maotor Insurance Services, Inc., a whollyv-owned subsidiary, and its msurance
company subsidianies {collectively referred to as “TMIS™), we provide marketing, underwriting, and
claims administration for vehicle and pavment protection products sold by dealers in the LS, Our vehicle
and payment protection products melude vehicle service agreements, puaranteed auto protection
apresments, prepmd maintenance agrecments, excess wear and uge apreemients, tire and wheel protection
agreements and key replacement protection. TMIS also provides coverage and related admanistranve
services to certaim of our affibates m the US. Although the vehicle and payment protection products are
generally not regulated as insurance products, for ease of reference we collectively refer to the group of
products provided by TMIS herein as “insurance producis.”

Our finance operations are bocated in the U5, and Puerie Rico with caming assets principally sourced through Toyota
and Lexus dealers. As of March 31, 2019, approximately 23 percent of retail and lease contracts were concentrated in
California, |1 pereent v Texas, 8 percent in New York, and 5 percent in New lersey, Our insurance operations ang
Tocated i the US. As of March 31, 2019, approxmaately 26 pereent of insuwmnce policies and contracts were
concentrated in Califorma, & percent in New York, and 5 percent in Maryland, New Jersey, and Virgima, respectively,
Any maierial adverse changes o the cconomies or applicable lows in these states could have an adverse effect on our
finnngial condition and resulis of operations,

On April 16, 2009, we announced that we will restructure our field operations over the next two vears to better serve
our dealer partners by streambning our field office structure into three regional locations and imvesting m new
technology. Costs associated with this restructure ane not expectad to be significant.
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
MNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Dallars in millions)

Basis of Preseniation and Principles of Consolidation

Our accounting and fnancial reporting policies conform 1w accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America ("U.S. GAAPT). Cenain prior period amounis have been reclassified to conform le current period
presentobon. Reluted party transactons presented in the Consolidated Finoncial Staternents are disclosed in Note 12
Reluted Party Transactions.

The consalidated financial statements include the accoums of TMOC, us whollv-owned subsidunes amd all vanable
witerest entities (“VIE™) of which we are the pronary beneficiary. All mtercompany transactions and balances have
been elimmated.

['se of Estimates

The preparation of finnncial staterments in conformity with US. GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounis of assets and labilities and the disclosure of contingent asscts and
lighilities at the date of the financial sttements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting pericd, Because of inherent uncertmnty involved in making esnmanes, actual results could differ from those
estimates and assumptions, The secounting estimates that are most important to our busaness are the accumulated
depreciation related to our investments in operting leases and the allowance for credit losses.

Nignificant Accownting Policies

Our sigmficant accounting policies are found in the respective Note for which the policy s applicable.
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dallars in millions)

Note | — Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies {Continued

Recently Adopted Accownting Cwldance
On April 1, 2018, we adopied the following new accouming siandards:

Revenne Recognition

We adopied Accounting Standards Update ("ASLUTY 2004-09, Revenue from Conracts with Cusiomers ("ASL 2014-
97}, using the modified retrospective approach and applied i1 to active agreements at the nime of adoption.  As such,
the comparative nformation in this Form 10-K has nog been restated and continues 1o be repored under the accounting
standards i effect for those penods. The majonity of our tofal consohdated revenues are outside the scope of the
standard: however, the majonty of revenue reported by ouwr nsurance operations segment falls withim the scope of
ASL 2004-09. Upon adoption, fees collected for administering certain vehicle and pavment protection products are
i recodmied using the samse measure as the related product revense and cemain dealer incentives are now
capitalized and amortized over the contract term mstead of expensed as incurred

While the adoption of ASU 2014-09 has changed the niming of recognition of certain revenues and expenses, the total
reveniue and expense recopgmzed over the contract term wall not change us & result of adopting the standard, We do not
expect the adeption to be significant to our net income on an engoing basis.

The cumulative effect of the changes made 10 our Consolidated Balance Sheet as of April 1, 2018 for the adoption of
ASU-2014-0% was as follows:

Adpustmens
Marech 31, related April 1,
2o woadoption 2018

Assels;

(hiher assets 5 1614 % 73 5 1,687
Laabilitses and shareholder's equity

Deferred income taxes ] 512 % {3y 5 5,290
(rheer liabilities 3987 19 4,206
Retamed earmings 11,992 (110 11,882

The impact on our Consolidated Balance Sheet for the adoption of ASU-2004-08 was as follows:

March 31, 2019

Effect of Balances without
As reponed adoption adoption

Aszels:
COrher assets 3 1981 5§ {rZ) 3 1,50
Liabilites and shoreholder's equity:
Deferred income taxes b 5452 5 B 5 5490
Orber liakilities 4 564 {225) 4,339
Retamed eamings 12,658 115 12,773

For the year ended March 31, 2009, the effect on our Consolidated Statement of Income from the adoption of ASU
2014-09 was a decrease of £5 million in net income.

T

177/311



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
MOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dallars i millions)

Note | — Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies {Continued

Recognivion and Measurenens

We adopted ASU 2006-01, Financial fsvmens — Recognition and Measuremen of Finameial Assers (“ASU 2006-
017}, which requires entities 1o mexsure equity investments ol Tair value and recogniee any changes in Gair value in nel
ingaane. On Apnl 1, 20018, we recognized the cumulative effect of adoption by recording a reduction o our opemng
retained eamings of approximately 312 million, net of tax

Ohilver Revenily Adopted Standurds

We adopted ASL 2006-15, Staterend of Cash Flovws (Tapic 2300 Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Caxl
Pavarems, which is intended 1o reduce diversity in practice in the classificanion of certain cash receipts and cash
payments in the statement of cash flows. The adopnon of this guidance did not have an impact on our consolidated
financial statemems and related disclosures

We adopted ASU 2006-18, Staterrenr of Cash Flows (Topic 2300 Restricted Cash, which clanifics how restmicted cash
and cash equivalents should be classified and presented on the statement of cash flows. This guidance was intended 1o
reduce dhiversity in practice an the classificanon of reswricted cash and cash equivilents on the stmement of cash Mlows,
Effective Apnl 1. 20018, we no lemger report the chanpe in restneted cash and cash equivalents in the operating and
investing sections in our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, Restncted cash and cash equivalents are now
in¢luded in the beginming and end of the period cash and cash equivalents on the Consolidated Statements of Cash
Flows. These changes have been applied using a retrospective transition method 1o each period presented,

We early adopted ASU 200 8-02, fncome Statemeny = Repearting Comprehensive Income (Topic 2200 Reclassificanon
of Certain fax Effects from Acenmulated Other Comprehiensive fucome, which allows a reclassification from
accumulated other comprehensive income to retsined eamings for stranded tax effects resulting from the Tax Cut and
Jobs Actaf 2007 ("TCIA™), The adoption of this guidance did not have a material impact on our consalidated
fenancial statements and related disclosures.
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dallars in millions)

Note | — Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies {Continued

Accounting Guldance Isswed But Nt Yer Adopted

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASE”) issued ASU 20016-02, Legses (Topic 842,
which introduces a lessee model that brings most leases on ihe balance sheet and aligns many of ihe underlying
principles of the new lessor model with those m the new revenue recognition standard. The FASB also subsequently
issued guidance amending and clanfying various aspects of the new leases guidance. The new leasimg standard
represents a wholesale change 10 lease pecounting for lessees and requires additional disclosures regarding leasing
arrangements. We wall adopt this ASU using the optional transition metod and it will not have a cumulaive-elTect
adjustment 1o the opening balance of retained earmings in the perod of adoption. Upon adoption of the guidance on
April 1, 2019, we expect 1o recognis: nght-of-use assets and bease liabilines (at their present value) of approximately
3120 million in our Consolidated Balunee Sheet

In June 2006, the FASB 1ssued ASL 2006-13, Financlal Instraments — Credii Losses (Tople 326); Measirement of
Cradit Lovises o Fiancial Invrmmenie. This guidance miroduces a new impairment model based on expected losses
rather than incurred losses fior centan types of financial instruments. 1t also modifies the impaimment model for
available-for-sale deba securities and provides for a simplified accounting model for purchased financial assets with
credit deteripration since their arigination. The FASH also subsequently issued guidance amending and clanfying
aspects of the new impairment model. This ASL is effective for us on Apnl [, 20200 We are in the process of
developing, refining and testimg the models and procedures that wall be used 1o calculate the credit loss reserves in
accordance with this new accounting puidance. We expect this new suidance will result in an increase in our
allowance for credit losses with a cumulative-effect adjustment 1o our opening retamed eamings in the periad of
adoprion, The magnitude of the increase in our allowance for cradit losses is under evalustion, We are currently
evaluating the other potential impacts of this gindance on our consolidated financial satements and related disclosures

In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-08, Recctvabies— Nonrefumdable Fees and Other Costs, which requires
certain premiums on callable debt securities 1o be amontized 1o the earliest call date. This ASL is effective for us on
April 1, 2009, The adoption of this guidance will not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements
and related disclosures.

In August 2017, the FASH issued ASU 2017-12, Derivanives and Hedging (Topte 8151, which makes targeted
improvements o accounting for hedging activities. This gusdance eliminaies the requirement 1o separaiely measure
and report hedge e ffectiveness and generally requires, for qualifving bedges, the entire change in the far value of a
hedging instrument to be presented in the same income statement line as the hedeed item. The guidance provides new
altematives for applying hedge accounting and measuring the hedged item in fair value hedpes of interest rate risk
The guidance also modifies certin disclosure requirements. This ASU is effective for us on April 1, 2019, The
adoption of this guidance will not have an impact on our consolidated Nnancial statemems and related disclosures as
we no longer have hedge accounting derivatives as of Seprember 30, 2015,

In Auwpust 2018, the FASE 1ssued ASLU 2001 8-13, Fair Falwe Measuremert (Topic 8200, which modifies disclosure
requirements related o Gair value measurement, This ASL is effective for us on Apnl 1, 2020, We are currently
evaluating the potennal impacts of this gudance on our discloswres.
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dallars in millions)

Note | — Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies {Continued

In Awgust 2018, the FASH 1zsued ASU 2018-15, Intangibfes  Gosdwill and Other— Imiermals Use Soffware, which
aligns the accounting for costs incurred to mmplement a cloud computing arrangement that 15 a service arangement
with the guidance on capitalizing costs associated with developing or obtaining intemal-use software, This ASU s
effective for us on April 1, 2020, We are curremtly evaluating the potential impacis of this guidance on our
consolidated financinl satements and related disclosures.

In October 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-17, Consalidasion (Topic §10), which reguires indirect interests held
through related parties in commaon control arangements 1o be considered on a proportional basis for determining
whether fees paid 1w decision maokers and service providers are vaniable interests. This ASU is effective for us on
April 1, 2021, We are currently evaluating the potential impacts of this guidance on our consolidaed financial
statements and refated disclosures.

In April 2019, the FASH issued ASL 200904, Codification Tmpraventenis fo Tople 326, Fingnclal Insiramenis
Cradiv Losses, Topic 813, Devivarives and Hedeing, and Topic 825, Financial fsrewmnents. The apphicable provisions
of this ASU are effective for us on Apnl 1, 2020 We are currently evaluanng the potential impacts of this guidance on
our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures,
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Dallars in millions)

Note 2 — Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments in Marketable Securities
Cash and Casl Equivalenis

Cash and cash equivalents represent highly higquid investments with maturities of three months or less from the dme of
peguisition and may include money market mstruments, commercial paper, cenilicates of deposit, ULS. government
and agency obligntions, or similar instruments,

Rextricted Caxh amilf Cash Egaivalents

Restricied cash and cash equivalenis include cusiomer colleciions on securitized receivables io be disinbuied o
investors as pavments on the related secured notes and loans payable, which are primarily related w securitization
trusis. Restricted cash equivalenis may also contain amownts unrelated to financing aciivities which are restricted as 10
use and proceeds from certun debt 1ssuances for which the use of the cash 1s restncted.

fvestments in Marketable Securities
Investments in marketable securities consist of debi securities and equity investments,

[Debt secarties are designated as avallable-for-sale (“AFS™) and are recorded at fair value with unreahzed gains or
lnszes included in accumulated other comprehensive mcome [~ ACCT™), net of applhicable taxes. An unrealized loss
exists when the current fair valuee of an individual security 15 less than its amomized cost basis. We conduct periodic
feviews of AFS debt sacurities 1o determine whether the lass is desmied 1o be other-than-temporary.

1 an other-than-temporary impairment {“O7TT17) loss 15 deemed 1o exist, we first determine whether we have the intent
to sell the debt security or if it is more likely than not that we will be eegquired 1o sell the debt security before recovery
off is amormzed cost basis. 11 so, the cost basis of the secunty 15 wntten dovwn 1o fair valuee and the loss s reflected in
Investment and other income, net i our Consolidated Statements of Income. I we do not have the imtent to sell nor 15
it more likely than not that we will be required to sell, the credit loss component of the OTTI losses i1s recognized
Investment and other income, net i our Consolidoed Statements of Income, while the remainder of the loss s
recognized in AQCIL The credit loss component is identificd as the portion of the amortized cost of the secunity not
expected wo be collected over the femaining tefm os projected using a cash Row analysis for debt securnities.

Prior to April 1, 2008, our equity investments were also considered AFS, However, beginning on Apnil 1, 2018, all
aquity investments are recordad at fair value with changes in fair value included in Investment and other income, nat
within owr Consolidated Statements of Income, Realized gans and losses from sales of equity investments ane
determined using the first in first out method and are included in Investment and other income, net within our
Consolidated Statements of Income.
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dallars in millions)

Note 2 — Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments in Marketable Securities (Continned

Investmenis in marketable securities consisted of the following:

March 31, 2019
Amonized  Unrealized  Unrealized Fair
_cost  gains  losses  walue
Available-for-sale debr secunties:
LS. government and agency obligations 5 213 5 2 3 3) 5 212
Mumicipal debt securities o 2 - 1]
Certilicates of deposi sli] - - 30
Commercial paper 70 . - ]
Corporate delit secunties 160 3 () 162
Mongage-backed secuntigs:
LIS, poverniment apecy s - - 35
Mon=agency residential I . - I
Mon-agency commercial 39 - - i
Asset-backed securities 52 I ) - 53
Total available-for-sale debt securities 5 25 5 g8 3 (4) & 633
Equity investments 5 2,275
Total investments in marketable securines b3 2,908
March 31, 2018
Amomized  Unrealized  Unrealized Fair
cost ~_ gains  losses = walue
Available-for-sale secunties:
Debt secunties:
LS. government and agency obligations & 2821 % -5 (23) % 2798
Mumntcipal debt securnities 1] | - ]
Cenmificates of deposit 475 - i 474
Cominercial paper 52 . - 2
Corporate debt secunties 203 I (3 201
Maorngage-hacked secunities:
US, government agency 38 1 - 39
Mon-agency residential | ! - 2
Mon-agency commercial o - (1N] 2
Assel-backed securities 3 - . 0
Equaty investments 2,196 I (23} 2184
Total investmenis in marketahle securities £ 5865 8 15 % [51) $ 5,820

A portion of our equity imvestments are investments m funds that are privately placed and managed by an open-end
investrent management company (the “Trust™). ¥ we elect to redeem shares, the Trust will normally redeem all
shares for cash, but may, m unosunl circumstances, redeem amounts exceeding the lasser of $250 thouzand or |
percent of the Trust's asset value by payment in kind of securities held by the respective fund dunng any 90-day
period.

We also invest in actively iraded open-end mumal funds, Redemprions are subject 1o normal terms and condinons as
descnbed i each fund's prospectus.
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dallars in millions)

Note 2 — Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments in Marketable Securities (Continned

Unrealized Losses on Securitles

Available-for-sale debd securities in a continuous loss position for less than twelve months and for greater than twelve
maonths were not signilicant as of March 31, 2019, Available-for-sale debt secunities and equity investments in a
contnuous loss posinon for less than twelve months and for greater than twelve months were not sigmiicant as of
March 31, 2018,

(rains and Losses o Securitics

The ollowing table represents gans and losses on our invesunents i marketable secunties presented in our
Consolidned Stiements of Inconw:

Years Ended March 31,

2019 . 2018 . 2o17
Available-for-sale securitics:
Realized {losses) ga'mn 5 [12) % 41 5 226
Equity mvestments;
Unrealized pains recognized ] 14

Contracie! Manriies

The amorzed cost, far value and conractual maturives of avarlable-for-sale detn securnies are summarneed in the
following table. Actual maturines may differ from contraciual maturities because ceriain bormowers have the nght 1o
call or prepay certain obligations,

March 31, 201%

Amortized Cost  __ Fair Value

Available-for-sale debi secunties:
Due within | year 5 177 5 177
Due after | vear through 5 years 102 102
Due after 5 vears through 10 vears 1+hiy 147
D atfter 10 years 77 T4
Morgape-backed and asset-backed secunines? 127 128
Total g 629§ 633

| Mortgage-backed and asser-backed securniics are shown separatcly from other matunty groupings as these securities have muluple
malurily dates.
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dallars in millions)

Note 3 — Finance Receivables, Net

Finance receivables, net consist of the retail loan and the dealer prodects ponfolio segments, which includes accrued
interest and deferred fees and costs, net of the allowance for credit losses and deferred moome.  Finanee recervables,
net also includes securinized retail receivables, which represent retail receivables that have been sold for legal purposes
1 securitization trusts but continee to be included in our consolidated financial stements, as discussed further in
Note £~ Vanable Imerest Enttres. Cash flows from these secuntized retail recenvables are avanlable only for the
repayment of debt issued by these trusts and other obligations ansing from the secunitization ransactions. They are
not avarlable for payment of our other obligations or to satsfy clums of our other creditors.

Finange recervables are classified as held-for-investiment if the Company has the intent and ability 1w hold the
receivables for the foreseeable future or unti] maturity or pavell, As of March 31, 2009 and 2018, all finance
receivables were classified as held-for-mvestment

Revenues associated with retil and dealer financing are recopnized so as 1o approximate a constant effective yield
ower the contract term.  Incremental direct fiees and costs incurred in commection wath the acquisition of retm] contracts
and dealer financing receivables, including incentive and rate parmcipation payments made to dealers, are capitalized
and amormzed so a5 to approximate a constan effective vield over the term of the related contracts. Payments
received on subvention and other consumer incentives are deferred and recognized 10 approximate a constant effective
yield over the term of the relaited contracts

The accrual of revenue is discontinued at the time a retail receivable is deiermined to be uncollectible. These finance
receivables may be restored o accrual stams when future pavments are reasonably assured. For retail loan finance
receivables in non-accrual status, subsequent financing revenue is recogmzed only to the exient a payment 15 received.
Pavments are applied first to outstanding interest and then to the unpad principal balance.

Imipanied receivables in the dealer products portlolio segment are placed on nonpceranl status if full pavinent of
princapal ar imterest is m doubt, or when prncipal or interest 15 90 days or more past due. nterest accred, ban not
collected at the date a dealer hnancing receivable i placed on nomaccrual status, is reversed agamst mterest income,
o addition, the amortzation of net deferred fees s suspended.  Interest income on nonaccrual dealer financing
receivables is recogmized only io the extent it is received in cash, Dealer financing receivables are restored io acerual
status only when interest and principal payments are brought current and future pavments are reasonably assured
Finance recesvables in the dealer producis ponfolio segment are charged of T against the allowance for credit losses
when the loss has been realized.

Finance receivables, net consisied of the fallowing:

Muarch 31, Murch 31,
2019 2018

Retail receivables £ 42621 % 41,265

Secuntized retasl receivables 11,318 12,130

Dealer financing 17,686 17,420

T1.638 70815

Deferred onginanon {fees) and cosis, net 695 630
Deferred income (1314) {1,335)

Allowance for credit losses

Retail and securitized retail receivables (304) (312)
Dicaler financing (195} (151)
Total allowance for credit losses (499 ) (463}

Finanee receivables, net % 0517 % 69,647
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dallars in millions)
Note 3 — Finance Receivables, Net (Continued)
Contractual mamrities on retail receivables and dealer financing are as follows:
Contracival maturnities

Years ending March 31, Retail receivables  Dealer financing
20240 5 14,180 S 12957
2021 12,864 1.519
2022 10,934 924
2023 8618 588
2024 5,238 646
Thereafter . 2103 1,062
Tatal 5 33930 5 17 6546

A portion of our finance receivables has historically settled prior to contractual matunty. Contractual matunties
shown above should not be eonsidered indicative of fuure cash collections,

Creait Qesnlity nidivitors

We are exposed to credit risk on our finance receivables, Credit nisk is the risk of loss ansing from the failure of
customers or dealers to meet the terms of their contracts with us or otherwise Sl to perform as agreed.

Resaild Lesan Portfolio Seguent

The retail loan porifolio sepment consisis of one class of finance receivables, While we use various credit quality
metrics 1o develop our allowance for credin losses on the retail loan ponfolio segment, we primanly utlize the aging of
the individual accoums to momitor the credit quality of these finance recervables, Based on our expenence, the
payment status of bormowers 15 the strongest mdicator of the credit quahity of the underbymg recenvables. Payment
status also impacts charge-offs.

Individual borrower accounts within the retal loan portfioho segpment are segregated nto aging categones based on the
number of days outstanding. The aging for each class of finance receivables 1s updated monthly.
BDealer Prodices Porifolio Yegmen

For the three classes of finance receivables within the dealer products ponfolio segment (wholcsale, real estate and
working capital), all loans owstanding for an individual dealer or dealer groug, which includes afliliated eatities, are
aggregated and evaluated collecuvely by dealer or dealer group, This reflects the mterconnected nature of financing
provided to our individual dealer and dealer group customers, and their affiliated entities,

When assessing the credit quality of the finance receivables within the depler products portiolio segment, we segregite
the Mnance receivables sccount balances it four catepores representing distinet credit quality indicators based on
internal risk assessments. The internal nsk assessments for all finance receivables within the dealer products ponfolio
segment are updated on a monthly basis.

The four eredi quality indicators ane:
. Performing = Account not classified as esther Credit Watch, At Risk or Defaule;
. Credit Warch — Account designated for elevated anention;

. At Rigk - Account where there 15 an increased hkelihood that defanh may exiss based on qualinative and
quantitative factors; and

. Default — Account i5 not currently meeting contraciual obligations or we have iemporanly waived cerain
contractial requiremeants
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Dollars in millions)
Note 3 — Finance Receivables, Net (Continued)
The ables below present each credit quality indicator by class of finance recenvables:

Bectail Loan
Mlarch M. Melanch 31,
2000 miK
Apmg of finance morrvablo
Curreni i 00T 5 53550
A5 dy st g 57 613
(0-59 dary past e 12 158
00 v oF prealer e dus m ]
Tissl [1 Bs 8 TR
Wk Kol Enlatg _Wanking Capital
Mobarchs 31, March M. March 1. March 11, March . Murch .
i ]5 0LR Rl L) 019 P
walut quality sk T = e T T reeneer = el SRR
Porfoemisg 5 153 % A5 5 LRI 4o 5 1448 5 LI1EtA
Credil Waich | Wi} Tk 1% A Ll 1.1
At Mk 143 ] L2 2 LA LL
Dictasht % _a : A _ __ 4 3
Tioind $ 10440 § L7 T an7l & s & 1A% & 1Y
— ==

Pasr Dae Finance Receivables by Class

Substanteally all finance recesvables do not involve recourse 1o the dealer im the event of customer default.  Finance
receivables include contracts in bankruptey and contracts greater than 120 days past due, which are recorded m the fair
value of collateral less estimated costs o sell. Contracts for which vehicles have been repossessed are excluded.

The following tables summuarize the aging of [inance recervables by ¢lass:

March 31, 2019
90 Days or
30 - 59 60 - 80 90 Days or Cireater Past
Days Days Greater  Toral Past Total Finance  Due and

Past Due  PastDue  PastDwe  Due  Cument  Receivables  Accruing

Retail loan 5 657 % 162 & 35 B2 5 5347 3 53910 § 47
Wheolesale - - 1 1 10,439 10,440 -
Rieal estate - - - - 4.671 4671 -
Waorking capiral = = 4 4 1581 2,588 z
Total 5 657 § 162 5 T8 5 B97 3 0,738 3 71635 § 47

March 31_ 2018
90 Days or
- 59 60 - B9 20 Days or Gireater Past
Davys Days Greater  Todal Past Total Finance  Due and

Past Due  Past Due  PastDue Due Current Heceivables  Accruing

Retail loan 5 613 5 158 § 65 5 B36 5 51559 § 53395 § A6
Whalezale * . H - 10,513 10,513 ;
Real estate - - - - 4,630 4630 -
Working capital e - - __ 237 2277 -
Total 5 613 § 158 S 65 5 836 § 69979 § 70815 % a6
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
MNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dallars in millions)
Note 3 — Finance Receivables, Net (Continued)
Impaired Finanee Receivables

A finance receivable 1s considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that we will
be unable to collect all amounts due according to the terms of the contract. Factors such as payment histary,
compliance with terms and condinons of the underlying loan agreement and other subjectve factors relmed 1o the
financial stability of the borrower are considered when determining whether a finance receivable is impaired.

The followang table suminirizes the mfermation related o our mpaired loans by class of Mnoice recervables:

Impaired Indavidually Evalmecd
I'imange Receivables Allowance
Muarch 31 March 31, March 31, March 31,
LR 200K HH9 g

Linapimeed socdm |salamsees imibwidslly evalim el G anpasnnent with sn sllowsnes

Whodeale 5 6l % T % bl I 4 14
Real esaate 93 HE 1 L]
Warking capital : 7 : A5 I 51
Total 5 k) I 4 ME % LI 0

Impaired accoun balances mividoslly evalustod for impaimment withoul = allowance:

Whidesale ] [T W3
Real estate 152 14z
Waorking capital i 12
Total i LU 27

Frinpurrtnd s Balasaes oppigratiod sml ev ol B impeinmsen
Retal boam 5 R I 323

Toviad immpniecd] noconmt halanees:

Retanl boan 5 n s 222
Whidesale 29 190
Renl extnle 245 228
Waorking capital =7 ™
(] 5 [ ] 7T

The primary source of interest income recognized on the loans in the table above is from performing troubled debe
restructurings, Injerest income on impaired finance receivables and interest income recognized using a cash-basis
method of accounting durnng Gscal 2019 and 2018 were ot significant, As of March 31, 2009 and 2018, the impared
fimnnce recevables balance for accounts m the dealer products portfolio segment that were on nonacereal status was
£329 pnillicd and $249 millici, respectively, dind there were no charge-offs agamst the allowance for credil losses for
these finance receivables. Therefore, the impaired finance receivables balance 15 equal to the unpaid principal balance.

A af March 31, 2019 and 2018, impaired finance receivables in the retal loan portfolie sagment recorded at the fair
value of the collateral less esnmated selling costs were not igmficant and therefore excluded from the table above
Refer to Mote 5 — Allowance for Credit Losses for details related to the retal loan portfolio sepment’s impaired
account halances which are aggregated and evaluated for impairment when determining the allowance for credit
lnases,
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
MNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Dallars in millions)

Note 3 — Finance Receivahles, Net (Continued)

Troabled Debi Resirncturing

A roubled debt restructuning occurs when a finance recervable s modified through a concession to a borrower
experiencing financial difficulty. A finance recervable modified under a troubled debt restructuning 15 considered to be
impaired. In addition, trouhled debt restructunngs include finance recervables for which the customer has filed for
hankruptey protection, For such finance receivahles, we no longer have the ability 10 modify the rerms of the
agreement without the approval of the hankruptcy court and the court may impose term modifications that we are
obligated to accept.

For accounts not under bankrupicy protection, the amount of finance receivables modified as a troubled deb
restructuring during fiscal 2009 and 2018 was not sigmificant for each class of finance receivables. Troubled deby
restructurings for accounts not under bankmuptey protection within the retail loan class of finance recevables are
comprised exclusively of contract term extensions that reduce the monthly pavment due from the customer. For the
three classes of finance recervables within the dealer products portfolio segment, troubled debt restructunngs imclude
contract term extensions, interest mte adjustments, waivers of loan covenams, or any combination of the theee.
Troubled debi restructunngs of accounts not under bankneprey protection did not mclude forgiveness of pnncipal or
initerest rate adjustments during fscal 2019 and 2018,

We consider finance receivables under bankruptey protection within the retail loan class 10 be wroubled debt
restructurings as of the date we receive notice of a customer filing for bankreptey protection, regardless of the vltimate
outcome of the bankruptcy proceedings.  The bankruptey court may impose modifications as part of the procecdings,
including interest rate adjustments and forgiveness of principal. For fiscal 2009 and 2018, the financial impact of
troubled debt restructurings related to finance receivables under bankruptcy protection was not significant to our
Consolidated Sunemens ol Incoime and Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
MNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Dollars in millions)

Note 4 — Investments in Operating Leases, Net

Investmenis in operating leases. net consist of leases, net of deferred fees and costs, deferred income, accumulated
deprecianion and the allowance for credit losses. Secuntured investments 1n operating leases represent beneficial
interesis in a pocl of cenain vehicle leases that have been sold for legal purposes 1o securntization trusts but continue o
b included in our consolidated financial staements as discussed further in Note 8 — Varable Interest Entinies, Cash
flowes from these securimzed investments i operating leases are avalable only for the repayment of debt 1ssued by
these trusts and other obligations ansing from the securitization transactions. They are not available for pavment of
our other obligations or to satisfy clums of our other creditors.

Operating lease revenues ore recorded net of sales 1ax collected lrom customers and recognized on a straighit-line basis
owver the term of the lease. Defermed fees and costs, incleding incentive payments made to dealers and acguisition lees
collected from customers, are capialized or deferred and amortized on o stroight-lme basis over the contract werm.
Payments received on affilinte sponsored subvention and other incentive programs are deferred and recognized on a
stright-line basis over the contract e, The acerual of revenue on invesiments in operating leases is discontinued o
the time an secount s determimed 1o be wncollectible and subsegquent revenue s recogmized only 1 e extent o
payment 15 received. Operating leases may be restored 1o acerual stotus whien future payvinents are rensonobly sssured.

Residual values of lease contracts are estimated at lease inception by examining extermal industry data, the anticipated
Tovota and Lexuws product pipeline and our own expenence. Factors considerad in this evaluation include, but are not
Iimited to, econmmic forecasts, new vehicle pricing, new vehicle incentive programs, new velicle sales, compentor
actions and behavior, vehicle features and specifications, the mix and level of used vehicle supply, the level of current
used vehicle values, buying and leasing behavior trends, and fuel prices, We use vanous channels o sell vehicles
refurmned at lease-end,

Diepreciation on operating leases is recopmzed using the straight-line method over the lease term. The depreciable
basis 15 the orgmal scguisition cost of the vehicle less the estmated residual value of the vehicle at the end of the
lease term. On a quanerly basis, we review the estimated end-of-term market values and retumn rates of leased
vehicles to assess the appropriateness of the carrving values at lease-end. Factors affecting the estimated end -of=term
market value are similar to those considered in the evaluation of residual values at lease inception discussed above.
Adjustments to depreciaton expense 1o reflect revised estimates of expected market values at lease termimation and
revised retum rates are recorded prospectively on a strmight-ling basis over the remaining lease verm,

We evaluate our investment m operating leases portfolio for potential impairment when we determine a mggening
event has occurred, When a riggering event has occurred, we perform a test of recoverability by comparing the
expected undiscounted future cash Mows (including expected residual values) over the remaining lease tenms to the
carrying value of the assel group. [T the iest of recoverability identilies s possible impainment, the assel group’s Tair
volue 15 mensured in accordance with the fmir value measurement framework. An impanment charge would be
recognized for the amount by which the carrying value of the asset group exceeds its estmated fair value and would be
recorded in our Consolidated Statements of Income. As of March 31, 2019 and 201 8, there was 0o impairment i our
investment in operating leases ponfiolio.
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
MNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dallars in millions)
Note 4 — Investments in Operating Leases, Net (Continued

Investments in operating leases. net consisted of the following:

Muarch 31, Murch 31,
2019 2018

Investments in operating leases s 42869 & 42863
Seountized investments in operating leases 7,532 78649

50,401 50,732
Deferred ongination (fees) and cosis, net (225} (224)
Deferred income (2085) (1,700}
Accumulmed depreciation {10,060 ) (9977}
Allowance for credit losses i o3y (134}
Invwvestments tn operating laases, net 5 T892 5 35607

Future minimaim rentals on investmenis in operating leases are as follows:

Future minimum

Years ending March 31, remials on operaning leases

2020 3 6,025
2021 3,809
2002 1,467
2023 156
2024 4
Tesal 5 11,521

A partion of pur operating lease contracts has historically terminated prior 1o matunty.  Future mimimum rentals shown
above should not be considered indicative of future cash collections.
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
MOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dallars in millions)
Note 5 — Allowance for Credil Losses

We maintain an allowance for credit losses 1o cover probable and estimable losses mcurred on eur finance receivables
and investments in operating leases resulting from the falure of customers or dealers to make contractual payvments,
Manapement evaluates the allowance at least quarterly, considenng a vanety of factors and ASSUMMIGNS 10 determing
whether the allowance is considered adequate (o cover probable and estnimable losses incurred as of the balance sheet
dare,

Management develops and documems the allowance for credit losses on finance receivables based on two portfolio
segmenis, The determination of portfolio segments is based primarily on the qualitaive consideration of the nature of
our business operations and tlse charactensstics of the underlving hinonce receivables, as follows:

. Retuil Lown Porifelio Segmeni — The retal loan pertfolio segment consists of retul contracts scquired
from dealers in the ULS. and Puerto Rico, Under a retail contract, we are granted a secunity interest in the
underlying collvtera] which consists primarily of Tovom and Lexus vehicles, Based on the commaon risk
chamctenstics associmted with the finance receivables, the retail loan portfolio segment s conssdered a
single cliuss of finnnce receivable.

. Dealer Produces Portfolio Sepmrent - The dealer products portfolio sepment consists of wholesale
financing, working capital loans, revolving lines of credit and real estaie loans o dealers in the U8, und
Puerto Rico., Wholesale fimuncing is pnmarily collmeralized by new or used vehicle inventory with the
outstunding balance Muctuating based on the level of inventory. Working capital loans and revelving lines
of credit are granted for working capital purposes and are secured by dealership assets. Real estate loans
are collaternlized by the underlying real estate, are underwritien primanty on a foan-to-value basis and are
rypically for a fixed term. Based on the risk charactenistics associated with the underlyving finance
regeivishles, the dealer products portfolio segment consists of three clisses of finance receivables;
whelesale, working capiial (including revolving lines of credit), und real estate.

We also separately develop and document the allowance for credit fosses for investments in operating leases
Investments in operating leases are not within the scope of accounting guidance poverning the disclosure of ponfolio
SEgments,

Methodwlugy Used to Develap the Allowance for Crodit Losses

Hesand Losen Portfolio Segment and fnvestments in Cperating Loases

The level of credit risk in our retail loan portfolio segment and our investments in operating leases is influenced
primanly by two factors: default freoguency snd loss severity, whiech in tuem are influenged by vanows Teciors such as
econoimie condittons, the wsed velicle market, purchose quality mix, contract term lengih, and collection sirmtegies and
prclices,

Wi evaluate the retail loan portfolio segment and investments in operating leases using methodologies thar mclude roll
rate, credit risk grade/ner, and vintage analysis. We review and analyre external factors, including changes in
economic condittons, actual or percerved quality, safery and reliabibity of Toyvota and Lexus vehicles, unemplovment
levels, the used vehicle market, and consumer behavior. In addition, mtemal factors, such as purchase quality mix and
operational changes are also considered in the analyses.

We utilize a loss emergence penod assumption in developing our allowance for credit losses. This assumption
represents the average length of ttme between when a loss event first occurs and when the account 15 charged off. We
apply judament in estimating the loss emergence period using available credit information and mrends.

85

191/311



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo0o0oo00boo0gOoOoo(Ees904)
oOoOooodn

TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
MNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in millions)
Note 5 — Allowanee for Credit Losses {Contined)
Dealer Products Forgfolio Segmem

The level of credit risk in our dealer products portfolio segment is influenced primarily by the fnancial sirength of
dealers within our porifolio, dealer concentration, collnteral quality, and other economic factors, The lnancial
strength of dealers within our portfolio is influenced by, nmong other factors, general economic conditions, the overall
demand for new and used vehicles and the finnncial condition of sutomotive manufaciurers.

We evalwate the dealer pontfolio by aggrepating dealer financimg recervahles o loan-nsk pools, which are
determined based on the sk charmclenstics of the loan (e.p. secured by vehicles, renl estate or dealership assets). We
analvze the loan-risk pools using mtemally developed risk ratings for cach dealer. ‘We also utilize a loss emergence
period assumpiion in developing our allowance for credit losses. The loss emergence period represents the time period
berween the date at which the loss event is esiimated to have cccurmed and the ultimate realization of that loss theough
charpe-off. Tn addinion, feld operations management and our special assets growp are consulied each quarier io
determime 1f any specific dealer loan 15 considered imparred.  1f impared loans are wdentified, specific reserves are
established, as appropriate, and the loan is removed from the loan-nisk pool for separate monitonng

Avennting for ihe Allowance for Credit Losses and Impateed Recelvatles

The majonty of the allowance for credit losses covers estimated losses on the retal loan portfolio segment and
investments in operating leases which are collectively evalumed for impairment, The remainder of the allowance for
credit losses covers (e estimuted losses on the dealer products pontfolio sepment. Within the dealer products poatfiolio
segment, we establish specific reserves to cover the estimnted losses on individual impaired loans (including loans
madified in o troubled debt restructuning).  The speciflic reserves are assessed based on discounted cash flows, the
loan's observable market price, or the fair value of the underlying collzteral if’ the loan is collateral dependent.

Increases to the allowance for credit losses are accompamed by corresponding charpes 1o the Provision for credit
losses on our Consolidated Statements of Income. The uncollectible portion of finance recevables and myvestments in
operating leases 15 charged to the allowance for credit Iosses at the earlier of when an account is deemed to be
uncollectuble or when an account is greater than 120 days past due. In the event we repossess the collateral, the
recervable iz charped-off and we record the collateral a1 its estimated fair value less costs to sell and report it in Other
assets in our Consohdated Balance Sheets, Recovenes of Ainance recervables and mvestments i operating leases
previously charped off as uncollectible are credited o the allowance for credit losses.

The following mble provides information related o ouwr sllowance for credit losses on finance receivables and
InvEstments in operatng leses:

Years Ended March 31,

2019 2018 7
Allowance for credit losses at beginning of penod 5 597 5 62 3 535
Charge-ofls (464) (51@) (574)
Recoveries 97 ™ 7
Provision for credit losses 2 401 582
Allowance for credit losses at end of period % 602 % 7 5 622
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in millions)
Note 5 — Allowanee for Credit Losses {Contined)
Alfewance for Credlt Losses and Finance Receivables by Porifolic Segment

The following tables provide information relnied 1o our allowance for credit losses [or linance receivables and finance
receivables by portfolio segment.

¥ear Ended March 31, 2019
Retail Loan  Dealer Products Total

Beginning balance, Apnl 1, 2018 5 312 5 151 % 463
Charge-offs (330 . {3307
Recoveries ki) . S
Prowvision for credit losses 272 b 36
Ending balance, March 31, 2019 5 g § 195 § 4949
Allowance for Credit Losses for Finance Receivables:

Ending balance: Individually evaluated for imparrment 5 - 5 99 % 99
Ending balance: Collectively evaluated for impaimment 5 g4 3 9 % 40
Finance Receivables:

Ending balance, March 31, 201% 5 53019 % 17,606 % T1.635
Esiding balance: lndividually evalunted for impaimient s - % 623 % G623
Ending balance: Collectively evalumed for impairment 5 53939 3 17073 % 7012

The ending balance of finance receivables collectively evaluated for impairment in the above table includes
approximintely 5231 mallion of fmanee recervibles within the retn] loan ponfolio segment that ane specifically
identified as impaired.  These amounts are agereguted within therr respective portfolio seement when deteomining the
allowance for credin losses as of March 31, 2019, as they are decmed to be msignificant for individual cvaluation and
wie have determined that the sllowance for eredit losses is ot significant and would not be materially different i7 the
ameaents hiad been individually evaluated for impairment, The ending balance of linanee receivabiles for the dealer
products portfolio segment collectively evaluated for mipaimient as of March 31, 2019 mecludes $1.021 aullion n
finunce receiviables that are guarameed by Tovota Motor North Amenea, Inc. ("TMNA"™) and 5132 million in finamce
receivables that are guaranteed by third party privaie Tovota dismibutors, These finance receivables are related
cenmain Tovola and Lexus dealers and other third paries o whom we provided financing at the request of TMNA and
third pany private Toyota distnbaiors,
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Note 5 — Allowanee for Credit Losses {Continued)

Beginning balance, Apnil 1, 2007
Charge-offs

Recoveries

Provision for credit losses
Ending balance, March 31, 2018

Allowance for Credie Losses for Finance Receivables:
Ending balance: Individually evalumed for impairment
Ending balance; Collectively evaluated for impairment

Finance Receivables:

Ending balance, March 31, 2018

Ending balance: Individually evalwaed for impairment
Ending balance: Collectively evalwated for impairment

The ending balance of finance receivables collecnvely evaluated for impairment in the above 1able includes

Year Ended March 31, 2018

oOoOooodn

Retanl Loan  Dealer Products Tl
5 LEE 123 § 467
{335) - (335}

50 - S0

73 2 El

5 31z 5 151 § 463
] -3 W0 5 70
5 3z s Bl § 393
5 LRI L LI 17420 & TO815
5 - & 495 5 495
5 5308 5 16925 § 0320

approximately $222 million of finance receivables within the retail loan pontfolio sepment that are specifically
identified as impaired.  These amounts are aggprepated within therr respective portfolio segment when determiming the
allowance for credit losses as of March 31, 2018, as they are deemed 1o be msigmificant for individual evaluanon and
we have determined thar the allowance for credit losses 15 not significant and would not be materially different if the
amounis had been individually evaluated for impairment, The ending balance of finance receivables for the dealer
products portfolio segment collectively evaluated for impairment as of March 31, 2018 includes 51,030 million in
finance recervables that are guaranieed by TMNA and 5146 million in finance receivables that are guaranieed by third
party private Tovota distnbutors. These finance receivables are related o cenan Toyota and Lexus dealers and other
third parties to whom we provided financing at the request of TMNA and third party private Tovora distributors.
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dallars in millions)

Note 6§ — Derivatives. Hedging Activities and Interest Expense
Derivative Instrimients

Our liabilities consist mainly of fixed and variable rate debt, dencaninated in U.S. dollars and various olber currencies,
which we issue i the global capatal markets, while our assets consist primanly of LS, dellar denominmed, fixed mie
receivables. We enter into merest rte swaps, mterest rate (oors, and foreign currency swaps 1o econommcally hedpe
the interest mite and foreign curency nisks that result from the different charactenstics of our assets and lisbilittes, Owr
use of derivative transactions i5 intended to reduce long-term Muctuations in the fair value of assets and liabilines
coused by market movements. Al of our derivitive setivities are anhorized and monitored by our management and
our Asset-Linbility Comminiee, which provides o framework for financial controls and governance (o mamage market
risk.

We cateponze denvanves as those designared for hedge accounting (~“hedge accounnng denivatives™) and those that
are noft desipnated for hedge accounting (“non-hedge accounting denvatives”™). At the inception ofa derivative
contract, we may elect 1o designate o denvatve as a hedge accounting dervanive iFcertaim critena are met. As of
September 30, 2018, we no longer have any hedge accounting denvanves.

All dervative instruments are recorded on the balance sheet at fair valwe, aking o consideration the effects of
legally enforceable master netting apreements that allow us to net settle asset and hability positions and offset cash
collateral held with the same counterparty on a net basis. Changes in the fair value of our denvative struments are
recognized as a component of Interest expense n our Consohidated Statements of Income, The derivative instruments
are included as a component of Other assets or Oiher labilities in our Consolidated Balance Sheets,

(Nfsening of Derivatives

The aceounting puidance permits the net presentation on our Consolidated Balance Sheets of denvative recervables
and denvative payvables with the same counterparty and the related cash collateral when a legally enforceable master
netiing agreement exists, When we meet this condition, we ebect to present such balances on a net basis,

Our Intermational Swaps and Derivatives Association (“TSDA™) Master Agreements are also our master netting
agreemeants which permit multiple transactions 1o be cancelled nnd settled with a single net balance paid to either
party. The master netting agreements also contain reciprocal collateral agreements which require the ransfer of cash
collateral 1o the party 1n a het assel position across all transactions, Chr ¢ollaterl agreements with substantally all our
counterparties nclude a zero threshold, full collateralizanon arrangement. Although we have daly valuation and
collatéral exchange arrangements with all of cur counterparties, due to the ime required to move collateral, there may
be a delay of up to one day between the exchange of collateral and the valuation of our denvatives. 'We would not be
required o post additional collateral to the counterparties with whom we were in o net liability position ai March 31,
2009, if our credit ratings were 10 decling, since we fully collateraliee without regard o credit ratings with these
coutberparties. In addition, as our collateml agreements include legal right of offset provisions, collateral amounts are
netted agninst dervative assets or denvative liabilities, the net amount of which is included in Other assets or Other
liabilittes in our Consolidated Balance Sheets,
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dallars in millions)

Activities and Interest Expense (Continued

Irerivative Activity Impact on Financlal Seatemenis

The following tables show the lnancinl statement line item and amount of our denvative assets and linbilities that are
reporied in our Consolidated Balance Sheets:

March 31, 2019
Mon-hedge
aceounting denvatives
Fair
_ Motioral - walue
Oher asseis:
Interest e swaps 5 49254 % 472
Foreign currency swaps 2,771 T2
Towal 5 52025 % 544
Counterparty netting (441
Collateral held {42)
Carrymg value of denivative contracts = Other assets 5 6l
Other lHabilities:
Interest rate swaps £ 57,593 % 622
Forgign curmency swaps 9. 796 185
Toal 5 67380 & 1,407
Counterparty neting {441}
Collateral posied ) A0 )
Carrving value of derivative contracts — Onher liabilities £ 26

Asof March 31, 2019, we held excess collateral of 52 million, which we did not use 10 offser derivative assets and was
recorded in Ciher labilities in our Consolidaied Balanee Sheets, and we posied excess collnieral of S17 million, which
we did not use 1o offset dervative labilities and was recorded in Other assets i our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dallars in millions)

Hedging Activities and Interest Expense (Continoed

_March 31, 2018

Hedge accounting Mon-ledge
derivatives  acoountmg derivatives Total
Fair Fair Fair
Mononal ~ value  Motonal value  Motional value

Oiher asseis:
Interest e swaps 3 - § - & Tldod 3 872 % 71464 § 872
Interest rate fNoors - - B4T | 847 1
Foreign curreéncy swaps e 8 7.248 477 7367 485

Total 3 e s B 5§ 70550 5 1350 5 TOLTR § 1358
Counterparty netting (500
Collateral held (737

Carrying value of derivanve

contracts — Other assers 5 [

Other linbilities:
Initerest rate swaps 5 - 5 - % 41513 3 628 % 41513 % G628
Foreign currency swaps - - 5 B63 200 5863 20

Toral 3 - % - & 4737 3 B3R 247370 & E23
Counterpany netting (36i)
Collateral posued (262)

Carrying value of derivative

contracts = Other liabilites 5 i

As of March 31, 2018, we held excess collateral of 5§11 million, which we did not use 1o offset derivative assets and
was recorded in Other habilities in our Consolidated Balance Sheets, and we posted excess collateral of 53 mllion,
which we did not use 1o offsat dervative liabilities and was recorded in (hiher assets in our Consolidated Balance
Sheets

o1
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dallars in millions)

Activities and Interest Expense (Continued

I'he following table summarizes the components of interest expense, including the location and amount of gains and
losses on dervanve mstruments and related hedped 1tems, as reported m our Consolidated Statements of Income:

Years Ended March 31,

20019 2018 2017

Imterest expense on debi 5 2319 & 1,970 % 1,570
Interest ingoine o denvatives (53) (a7} (18}

Tnterest expense an debt and derivitives 2,506 1,903 1,552
(Gains) losses on non-hedge accounting debt denominated in
foreign curmencies (1.078) 1344 (632)
Losses (gains) on non-hedge accounting foreign currency swaps 1015 {1,306} 880
Losses (gaing) on LS. dollar non-hedge accounting
interest rte swips 04 190} (26}
Total interest expense s 2747 § 1851 $ 1,754

Interest expense on debt and derivatives represents net imerest settlements and changes in accruals. Gains and losses
ot hedpe accounting derivatives and debt desomimated in foreign currencies exclude net imerest settlements and
changes in accruals. Cash Mows associmted with bedpe accountmg, non-hedie accounting, and de-designated
derivatives are reported in Net cash provided by operating activites in our Consalidated Staterents of Cash Flows,
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dallars in millions)
Note T — Debit and Credit Facilities

[rebt and the related weighted average contractual interest rates are summarnized as follows:

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Weighted Weighted
avenige WvErage
Face Camrving  contractual Face Camrving  contractual
Value Walue intgrest rates Value WValue inlerest rates
Unsecured notes and loans payable $ 80,875 § 80,521 260% 5§ 85042 3 B4.7I5 2.05%
Secured notes and loans payable 12421 12401 162% 13657 13,638 1.95%
Total debr $ 93396 5 924922 260% 5 95699 3 08353 2.04%

The carrying value of our debt includes unamortized premiums, discounts, del issuance costs and the effects of
foreign cwrmrency transiation adjustments. Debt issuance costs are deferred ond amortized to interest expense on an
effective yield basis over the contractual term of the debt.

Wenghted average contractual mterest rates are calculated hased on ongmal notional or par value before consideranon
of premium or discount and approximate the effective interest rates.

Debot is callable at par value, Scheduled matuntics of our debi portiolio are summan zed below, Actual repayment of
secured debt will vary based on the repavment sctivity on the relited pledged assets.

Future
Years ending March 31, debt maturities
2020 3 43,500
2021 15,028
2022 14,086
2023 8,888
2024 3856
Thereafter! 5,938
Upamortized premiums, discounts and debt issupnce costs (374)
Tatal deht 3 S2922

! Unsecured and secured notes and losns payable mature on varioas dates through fiscal 2049,
Unsecured Notes and Levns Payalle

Our unsecured notes and loans pavable consist of commercial paper and fixed and variable rate debt, Short-term
funding needs are met through the issuance of commercial paper in the U5, Amounts outstanding under our
commercial paper programs were 325 3 hillion and 5273 hillon as of March 31, 2009 and 2018, respectively,

Upon issuance of fixed rate debt, we gencrally elect to enter into pay-float swaps to convert fixed rate payments on
debt to floating rate payments, Centain unsecured notes and loans pavable are denominated in vanous foreign
currencies, The debt is translated into LS, dollars using the applicable exchange rate at the transaction date and
retranslated at each balunce data usig the exchange mte i effect at that date. Comeurrent with the issuance of these
foreign cwrrency unsecured notes and loans payable, we enter into currency swaps in the same notienal amount to
converi non-1).5, currency paymenis to U5, dollar denomunated payments, Gains and losses related to foreign
currency transactions are included i Interest expense in our Consolidated Statements of Income

Certnin of our unsecured notes and loans pavable contain covenants and conditions customary in tramsactions of this
nature, including negative pledge provisions, cross-defult provisions and limitations on certain consolidations,
mergers and sales of assels, We are curvently in complinnes with these covenants and conditions
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MNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Note 7— Debt and Credit Facilities (Continued

Secured Neotes and Loans Payable

Our secured notes and loans payable are denominated in L5, dollars and consist of both fixed and variable rate delt,
Secured notes and loans payable are issued using en-balance sheel securitization tnists, as further discussed in Noie 8

Yarable Interest Entities.  These notes ane repayable only from collections on the underlyimg secuntized retul
finence receivables and the beneficial interests in mvestments in opermting leases and from related eredii

enlancements.

Credit Facilities and Letters of Credit
For addinional liquidity purposes, we maintain credit facilities as desenbed below:

dad Day Crediv Agreement, Three Year Credit Agreement and Five Year Credit Aprecnent

In Movember 2018, TMOC, Toyvoia Credit de Puerto Rico Corp. (“TCPR™) and other Tovota affiliates entered into a
55.0 billion 364 day syndicated bunk credit facility, 8 35,0 billion three vear svodicated bank credit facility and a 55.0
billion five year syndicated bank credin facility, expiring in fiscal 2020, 2022, and 2024, respectively,

The abibty o make draws 15 subject 1o covenants and conditions customary in transactions of this nature, mcluding
negative pledoe provisions, cross-defauli provisions and limitations on certain consolidations, mergers and sales of
assets. These agreements may be used for general corporate purposes and none were drawn upon as of March 31,

2019, We are curremly in compliance with the covenants and conditions of the credit agreements described above,

ihtlver [hnsecared Credie Agreements

TMOC has entered into additional unsecured credit facilines with vanous banks, Az of March 31, 2009, TMOC hadd
committed bank credit facilines wotaling 55.5 billion, of which 52,8 billion, $200 million and $2.5 billion mature in
fiscal 2020, 2021 and 2022, respectively.

These credil agreements contaim covenants and conditions customary in transactions of ihis natere, mecluding negative
pledge provisions, cross-delaull provisions and limanations on cenain consolidations, mergers and sales of assels.
These credit facilities were not drawn upon oz of March 31, 2009 or 2018, We are currently in compliance with the
covenants and conditions of the credit agreements described above.

In December 2008, TMOC entered into a 55.0 billion three vear revolving credit faciliey with TMS expaning in fiscal
2022, This credit facility may be used for peneral corporate purposes and was not drawn upon as of March 31, 2019,
Any amounts drawn on this credit facility would be recorded i Other habilittes on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

From tifme o himes, we may borrow from affiliates based upoi a auwisiber of business factors such as funds availabalaty,
cash flow timing, relative cost of funds. and market access capabalities. Amy amounts borrowed from affihates would
be recorded m Other hiabilities on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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Note 8 — Variable lnterest Entities

A VIE 15 an entity that either (1) has insufTicient equity (o permit the entity to finance is activiiies without additional
subordinated fnancial suppon of (i) has equity investors who lack the charactenistics of a controlling financial
imeresi. The primary benehciary ef a VIE is the pany with boih the power io direct the actwvities of the VIE that most
sigmbcantly impact the VIE s economic performance and the obligation o absorb the losses or the nght to receive
benefits that could potentinlly be significant to the VIE.

To assess whether we have the power to direct the actvities of a VIE that most ssgmificantly impact i1s econome
performance, we consider all the facts and circumistances including our role m establishing the VIE and our ongony
rights and responsibilities. This assessment includes identifying the actvities that most significantly impact the VIE's
economic performance and identifying which party, if any, has power over those activities. ln general, the party that
makes the most significant decisions affecting the VIE is determined o have the power to direct the activities of the
VIE. To assess whether we have the obligation to absorh the losses ar the nght to receive benefits that could
potentally be sypmificant 1o the VIE, we consider all of our economic imerests, including debt and equity imterests,
servicing rights and fee armangements, and any other variable interests in the VIE 1F we determine that we are the
party with the power to make the most significant decisions affecting the VIE, and we have an obliganon 1o absorb the
losses ar the nght to receive benefits that could potentially be significant 1o the VIE, then we consolidate the VIE

We perform ongoing reassessments, usually quarterly, of whether we are the pnimary beneficiary of a VIE, The
reassessment process considers whether we have scquired or divested the power to dinect the most significant activities
of the VIE through changes in governing documents or oiher circumstances, We also reconsider whether entinies
previously determined not o be VIEs have become VIEs, based on new evenis, and therefore could be subject 1o the
YIE consolidanon framework.

Corisalidated Varialle Interest Entitfes

We use one or more special purpose entities that are considered Vanable Interest Ennities to issue asset-backed
securities (o third parny bank-sponsored asset-backed secunnization vehicles and o invesiors in securitization
mansachions, The secunnes wsoed by these VIEs are backed by the cash flows related to retl finance recervables and
beneficial interesis in investmenis in operating leases ("Secunnzed Asses”). 'We hold varuble interesig in the VIEs
that could patentially be significant 1o the VIEs, We determined that we are the primary beneficiary of the
securitization trusts because (1) our servicing responsibilities for the Secuntized Assets give us the power o direct the
activities that most significantly mmpact the performance of the YW1Es, and (11} our variable mierests im the Y1Es give us
the abligation to absorb losses and the right to receive residal retirns that could potentially be significant,

The followng tables show the assets and Labihites related 1o our VIE secuntization transactions that were meluded in
our Consolidated Balance Sheets:

March 31, 2019
VIE Asspis VIE Liabilities
Gross Met
Resincied  Securimized  Secoritized Other Oither
Cash __ Assets Assets Assets Debe  Liabilities
Retail finance receivables 5 630 5 11,318 § 11075 5 6 5 2202 5 i
Investments in operating leases 388 753 5307 I8 X1 0 2
Toal 3 985 § 18,850 § 16,382 S 192 § 124001 § 12
March 31, 2018
VIE Assels VIE Liabilities
Grross Met
Restricted  Secuntized  Secuntized Crher Crther
Cash Assets Assets Assets Debe Liabilitics
Retail finance receivables 5 29 5 121300 § 10927 % 7 8 9958 § 7
Inwvestments in operating leases Xy T8 5706 g 3e80 3
Toeal 5 1026 & 19990 § 17633 % 125 & 13638 5 1]
95
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Note § — Variable Interest Entities { Continned

Restricted Cash, including cash equivalents. shown in the previous table represents collections from the underlying
Grross Securtized Assets shown in the table above and certmn reserve deposits held by TMOCC for the VIEs and 15
included as part of Restncted cash and cash equivalents on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Gross Secunnzed Assets
represent finance receivables and beneficial interests in investments in operating leases secuntized for the asset-backed
secunties issued. Net Secunnzed Assets shown m the table above are presemted net of deferred fees and costs,
deferred income, accumulated depreciation and the allowance for credit losses. Other Assets represent used vehicles
held-for-sale that were repossessed by or retumed to TMCOC for the benefit of the VIEs. The related debt of these
consolidated V1Es 15 presented net of $1,486 million and 51,520 million of securines retaimed by TMOC at March 31,
2019 and 2018, respectively. (nher Lizbilities represents accrued mterest on the debt of the consolidared VIEs,

The assets of the VIEs and the restnicted cash and cash equivalents beld by TMOC serve as the sole source of
repayment for the asset-backed securities issued by these entities, Invesiors in the notes issued by the VIEs do not
have recourse 1o us or our other assets, with the exception of cusiomany representation and warranty repurchase
provisions and ndemmines,

As the primary beneficiary of these entities, we are exposed to credit, residual value, imterest rate, and prepayment nisk
from the Securinzed Assets in the VIEs. However, our exposure to these nsks did not change as a result of the ransfer
of the assets to the VIEs. We may also be exposed 1o interest rate risk arising from the secured notes wssued by the
VIEs

In addiion, we entered o mierest rate swaps with cenmn special purpose entities that 1ssue varniable rate debr.

Under the terms of these swaps, the special purpose entities are obligated to pay TMCC a fixed rate of imerest on
certam paviment dates n exchange for recerving a floating rate of interest on notional amounts equal to the oustanding
balance of the secured debt. This ammangement enables the special purpose entities to mungate the interest e risk
inherent m issuing vanable rate debe that 15 secured by fixed rate Securitized Assets.

The traisfers af the Securtieed Assets to the specinl purpose entities i our securilizations are considered 1o be sales
for legal purposes. Howewer, the Secuntized Assets and the related debt remain on cur Consolidated Bolance Sheets.
We recognize financing revenue on the Secuntized Asseis and injerest expense on the secured debt issued by the
special purpose entities. We also maintain an allowance for credit losses on the Securitized Assels to cover estimated
probable credit losses using a methodology conssstent with that used for our non-securitized asset ponfolio. The
interest rte swaps between TMOC and the special purpose entities are considered mtercompany transactions and
therefore are eliminated in cur consolidated financial siatements.

Non-consolidated Variable Interest Entities

We provide lending to Tovota and Lexus dealers through the Toyota Dealer Investment Group's Dealer Capital
Program {*TDIG Program”™ )y operated by our affiliate, TMNA, which has an equity interest in these

dealerships, Dealers participating in this program have been determined to be VIEs, We do not consolidate the
dealerships it this progeam as we are ot the prmary beneficiary and any exposire 10 lass is himited 1o the amoun of
the credit facihty, Amounts due from these dealers under the TG Program that are classified as Finance receivables.
net m our Consalidated Balance Sheets at March 31, 20019 and 2018 and revenues eamed from these dealers durmg
fiscal 2019, 2018 and 2017 were ot significant,

We alse have other lending relationships which huve been determined to be VIEs, bat these relutionships are not
consolidated as we are not the pomary beneficiary, Amounts due and revenues carmed under these relationshaps as of
March 31, 2009 and 2018 were not signi (icant.

96
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Note 9 — Pension and Other Benefit Plans

We are a participating emplover in centain retivement and post-retirement medical care, life insurance, and other
benefits sponsored by TMNA, an affiliate. Costs of each plan are generally allocated to TMOC based on relative
benefit costs associated with participaning or eligible emplovees at TMOC as compared o the plan as a whole,

Defined Benefit Plan

Prior o January 1, 2015, our employees were generally eligible to parmcipate in the Toyota Motor Sales, US. A, Inc.
Pension Plan (ihe “Pension Plan”) commencing on the firsi day of the month following hire and were vesied afier 5
vears of continuous employment, Effective Tanuary 1, 2005, the Pension Plan was closed w employees first employed
or reemployed on or afier such doe.

Renefits pavable under this non-conmbutory defined benefit pension plan are based, generally, upon the emplovees'
vears of credited service (up to a maximum of 25 vears), the highest average annual compensation (as defined m the
plan) for any 60 consecutive month penod out of the last 120 months of employment (the “Applcable Years™), and
one-half of eligble bonus/gift payments for the Apphcable Years {recalculated to determine the annual average of
such amount), reduced by a percentage of the estimated amount of social security benefits

Costs allocated 1o TMCOC for our employvees i the Pension Plan and cenain other non-qualified plans were not
sigmificant for fiscal 2019, 20018 and 2017,

Defimed Contribution Plan

Employess meetig certain eligibihty requireiments, as defined in the plan documems, mav participate m the Toyota
Motor North Amenica, Inc. Beturement Savings Plan. Under thus plan, eligible employees may elect 1o contribute
between | percent and 30 percent of their eligible pre-tax compensation, subject to federal tax regulation limits, We
maich 66,67 percent of the first 6 percent that a participant contributes, up 1o 4 percent of eligible compensation,
Participants are always 100%%6 vested in thewr contributions to the Retirement Savings Plan. Emplover contributions
vest on a d-year graded schedule at 25 percent per year. Generally, contributions are funded through bi-weekly
payments to the plan’s administrator. Certain emplovees hired on or after January 1, 2015, may be ehigible to recerve
an addinional Company contribution to the plan caleulated based on their age and compensation.

TMOC emplover contribubions 1o the savings plan were nog sigmGcant for fiscal 2019, 2008 and 2017,

(ither Past-Retirement Benefit Plans

Emplovees are generally ehgible to participate in other post-retivement benelits sponsored by TMNA which provide
ceram medical care and life insurance benefits to ehigible retired emplovees. Generally, i order o be chgble for
these benefits, the emplovee must be age 55 or older with 10 or more vears of service,

Other post-retirement benefit costs allocated 1o TMOC were not significant for fiscal 2019, 2018 and 2017.

o7
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MNote 10— Income Taxes

We use the hability method of accounting for income taxes under which defermed tax assets and liabilines are adjusted
to reflect chanpges in tax rates and laws in the peniod such changes are enacted resulting m adjustments to the current
fiscal year's provision for income xes.

TMCC files o consolidated federal moome tax return with 15 subsidianes and TFSIC. TMCC fles eithwer separte or
consolidated'combined state income tax returns with TMNA, TFSIC, or subsidianes of TMOC. Siate income tax
expense is generally recognieed as if TMOC and its subsidiaries filed their tax retums on a stand-alone basis. In those
states where TMCC and its subsidiasies join in the filing of consolidated or combined income tax retums, TMCC and
its subsidinries are allocoled their shore of the total income tax expense based on combined allocation/apportionment
lactors and separale company income or loss. Based on the federnl and state wx sharing agreements, TFSIC and
TMCC and its subsidinries pay for their share of the meome tax expense and are reimbursed for the benefit of any of
their tax losses utilized in the federal and state income 1ax retums.

The provisson (henefin) for ncome taxes consisted of the followmg:

Years ended March 31,
2019 2018 207

Current
Federal 5 (35) S (45) 5 136
State Tt {10y 2
Foreign 4 i 7

Total 25 {52) 145
Deferred
Federal w7 (2.625) (91
State (49} 48 5
Foreigm — )y _ it 1

Toral T 2.577) (3)
Provision (benefin) for income taxes £ 182 % (2630} 5 142
A reconcihation between the US. federal statutory tax rate and the effective tax rate 15 as follows:

Years ended Murch 31,
2019 2018 2017

Provision for income taxes at LS. federal statwiory tax rate 21.0% 3.6% 35.0%
State and local taxes (net of federal tax banefit) 4.6% 4.8% 1.6%
Revaluaton of federal deferred tax habality from TCIA . (3716)% -
Tax rate differennial from tax loss carryback (2.8 - -
Adjustment for prior year provision o retarn dilferences {14 0.4% (2.27%
Effect of state tax [aw chanpges (1.3 (0.0 1.3%
(ilver, met {150 (1.7)% (3.21%
Effective tax rate 18.6% {336.6)% 34.7%

During fiscal 2018, the TCIA reduced the corporate income tax rate from 35% 1o 21%. As a result, our federal
statuiory rate for fiscal 2008 was a blended rate of 31.6% and we recorded a 529 billion income tax benefit from the
revaluation of pur net defermed ax lisbilities, We completed our assessment of the impact of the TCJA within twelve
manths from s enaciment date, and such impact has been reflected in our Consolidated Financial Statements as of
and for the yvear ended March 31, 2019

The amounts in Other, net in the table above melude an adjustment to the provisional deemed repatniation tax for fiscal
2019, benefits from federal plug-in vehicle credits for fiscal 2009, 20018, and 2017, and fuel cell credits for fiscal 201 7.
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Note 10— Incame Taxes (Continued)
Our net deferred income tax liability consisted of the following deferred tax liabilities and assets:

March 31,
009 2018

Liabilities:

Lease transactions 5 TIZ1 8 5642

State taxes, net of federal tax benefit 347 856

Mark-to-market of investments im markerahle securities and derivatives 44 185

Othar 288 244
[Deferred tax habilities -] 53H 5 6,927
Assets:

Provision for credit and residual value losses a6l 420

Deferred costs and fees 192 186

Net operating, loss and tax credit carry forwards 2,297 3

Oither 22 11
Deferred tax assets 2872 1,630

Waluation allowance {24} (29}
Net delerred ax assets -] 2848 8§ 1,601
Mot deferred meome tax habalay! 5 5452 § 5,326

I Balance includes amounts attnbutable to unrealized gains or losses inchuded in accumulated other comprehensive income or loss,
netof §1 million of deferred tax linbilitics and 57 mallion of deferred tax assets o8 March 31, 2019 and XM &, respectively, The
chanpe i this halange & not inchided in folal deferred fax expense

We have deferred tax assets related o cumulative federal and stote net operating loss carmyforwards of 2.1 billion and
5147 million at March 31, 2019, respectively, compared to 5857 million in federal net operating loss defemed ax
assets and $109 million in state net operating loss defemed wx assets ot March 31, 2008, respectively, The federal net
operuting loss generted in fscal 2008 will expare in 2038, while the edersl et operating loss generated in fscal 2019
will mot expire. The federal tax credit carry forwards will expire begimning in fiscal 2028, Some stabe net operating
loss carmvforwards hove no expiration while others expire beginning in fiscal 2020

The defermed 1ax assets related to foreign max credic and state ax net opermting loss carryforwards are reduced by a
valuation allownnce of $24 millicn and 329 million at March 31, 2009 pnd 200 8, respectively. The determination of
the valuation allowance is based on management’s estimate of future taxable income during the respective
camyforward periods. Apan from (he valuation allowance, we believe that the remaining deferred tax assets will be
realized in full, The amount of the deferred tax assets considered realizable could be reduced if management's
estimates change.
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Note 10— Incame Taves (Continued)

We have made an assertion of permanent reinvestment of earnings from our foreipn subsidiary; as a result, other than
the deemed repatriation tax that is provided pursuant to the TCJA, state and local taxes have not been provided for
unremitted eamings of car foreign subsidiary, At March 31, 2019 and 2018, these unremitied eamnings otaled 5232
million and 5223 million, respectvely, Determination of the amount of the deferved state and local tax liabality is not
practicable, and mecordingly no estimate of the unrecorded deferrad state and local tax Lability 15 provided,

Although we do not foresee any events causing repatriation of camings, possible examples may include but are not
Timived to parent company capital needs or exiting the business in the foreign country,

Our share of the income 1ax payable or receivable in those states where we filed consolidated or combined retums with
TMNA and its subsidiaries was nof significant for both March 31, 2001% and 2018, Additionally, our federal and siate
income tax pavable or receivable from TMOC affiliated companies, including TFSIC, Tovosa Financial Savings Bank
{"TFSB"). and Toyota Financial Services Secuniies USA Corporation, was noi significant for both March 21, 2019
and 2018,

The gusdance for the accounting and reporting for income 1AXES requines Us 10 355058 18X positions in cases where the
interpretation of the ax law may be uncertain, Unrecognized 1ax benefits were not significant as of March 31, 2019,
2008 and 20017 We do not have any positions for which it 15 reasonably possible that the total smounts of
unrecognized tax benefits will sigmificantly increase or decrease withim 12 months.

We agemse uterest, iFapplicable, reloted (o unceriain income tmx positions in interest expense, Staory penalties, il
applicable, accrued with respect to uncertain ncomse tax positions are recogmized as an addinion to the iIncome tax
linbility. For each of fiscal 2009, 2018, and 2017, acerued interest was not significant and no penalties were necrued.

Tax-related Contingencies

As of March 31, 2019, we remained under IRS examinanon for fiscal 2009 and 201 8. The IRS examination for fiscal
2017 was concluded i fiscal 20019
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Note 11 — Commitments and Contingencies
Cammitments and Guaranfees

We have emered imo cenain commitments and guaraniees for which the maximum wnfunded amounts pre summarized
in the nble below:

March 31, March 31,
2019 208

Commirtmets:

Credu facibues commitments with dealers 5 1378 & 1,286

Mimmum lease commitments 144 162
Total commitments 1,522 1,448

Guarantees of affiliate pollution control and solid waste disposal bonds 100 100
Tota] commitments and guaranices 5 1622 § 1,548

Whalezale financing 1% not consdered to be a contractual commatment as the armngements are not binding
armangements under which TMOC 15 required to perform.

We have a lease agreement through August 2032 with TMNA for our headquarers faciliy in Plano, Texas, Toal
retal expense, including pavinents 1o affiliates, was 530 pullion for both fiseal 2019 and 2018, and $27 million For
fiscal 2017, Mimmum lease commutments in the table above melude 397 mullion and 5105 mullion for facilines |eases
with affiliates at March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, At March 31, 2019, minimum future commimmenis under
lease apreements to which we are a lessee, including those with affiliates, are as follows:

Future minimum

Years ending March 31, lease payments
2020 £ 2
2021 19
2022 n
2023 I2
2024 10
Thereafier 6l
Tental b 144
Camtmitments

We provide fixed and vanable mte working capital loans, revolving hes of credst. and real estate financing 1o dealers
and varous multi-franchise organizations referred to as dealer groups for facilibies construction and refurbishment,
working capital requirements, real estate purchases, business acquisitions and other general business purposes. These
loans are typically secured with liens on real estate. vehicle inventory, and/or other dealesship asseis, as approprime,
and may be puaranteed by indiwvadunl or corporate guarantees of affihated dealers, dealer proups, or dealer primcipals.
Although the loans are typically collateralized or guaranteed, the value of the underbying collateral or puarantees may
not be sufficient to cover our exposure under such agreements. Our pricing reflects market conditions, the competitive
environment, the level of support dealers provide our retarl, lease and msurance business and the credit worthiness of
each dealer. Amounts drawn under these facilines are reviewed for collectability on a quanerly basis, in conjunction
with our evaluation of the allowance for credit losses. We have also extended credin facilities o affilines as described
i Note 12 = Related Party Transactions.
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dallars in millions)

Note 11 — Commitments and Contingencies { Continued

Crwaranices amd er Contfngencies

TMCC has guaranteed bond obligations wialing 3100 million in principal that were issued by Putnam County, West
WVirgimia and Gibson Coundy, Indiana io lnance ihe construction of pollution control fecilities a1 manufeciunng plants
of certwn TMCC affiliates. The bonds mature i the followmg Mscal years ending March 31: 2028 < 520 million; 2029
- £50 million; 2030 - £10 mallios, 2031 - $10 million; and 2032 - $10 million. TMOC would be required o perform
under the guaramees in the event of non-pavment on the bonds and other related obligntions. TMOC is entitled w
reimbursement by the applicable afiliates o any amounis paid. TMCC receives a nominal annual fee for
guaranieging such pavmenis. TMOC has ool been required o perform under any of these aMiliate bond guaraniees as
of March 31, 2009 and 2015,

Tndemnification

In the ordhmary course of busimess, we enter inta agreements contanmg mdemmificanon provisions standard in the
dusiry related to several tvpes of transactions, including, but not linated to. debt funding, denvatives, secuntization
rransactions, and our vendor and supplier agreements. Performance under these indemmnines would occur upon a
breach of the represeniations, warraniies or covenams made or given, or a third pany claim. In addinon, we have
agreed in certain debt and derivative issuances, and subject to certain exceptions, 10 gross-up pavments dus 1o third
parties in the event that withholding tax is imposed on such payments. In addition, certain of our funding
ATANZements may require us to pay lenders for increased costs due to certain changes m laws or regulabions. Due to
the difficulty in predicting events which could cause a breach of the indemmification provisions or trigger a gross-up or
other payment obligation, we are not able 1o estimate our maxinum exposure to firture payments that could result from
claims made under such provisions. We have not made any material payments in the past as a result of these
provisions, and as of March 31, 2009, we determined that 1t 18 not probable that we will be required 10 make any
material payvments in the future. As of March 31, 2019 and 2018, no amounts have been recorded under these
indemnification provisions.

Litigation and Covernmental Procerdings

Various legal setions, govermmental proceedings and other claims are pending or may be mstituted or asseried m the
future against us with respect 1o matters arising in the ordinary course of business, Cerain of these actions are of
purpon o be class sction suis, seeking sizeable damages andfor changes in our busingss operations, policies and
practices. Cenain of these actions are similar 1o suits that have been filed against other financial institutions and
captive finance companies, In addition, we are subject to governmental and regulatery examinanons, information-
gathering requests, and investigations from tme o ome ot the state and fedeml levels. s mberently difficult o
predict the course of such legal actions and govermmental inquiries. On January 28, 2005, we received a request for
documents and information from the New York State Department of Financial Services relating o our lending
praciices {including fair lending ), We provided the requesied documents and information, but have not had further
communication with the agency regarding their peview.

We perform periodic reviews of pending ¢laims and actions to determine the probability of adverse verdicts and
resulting amownts of halality. We establish accruals for legal chnms when payvments associated with the claims
become probable and the costs can be reasonably estimated. When we ane able, we also determne estimates of
reasonably possible loss or range of loss, whether in excess of any related accrued liability or where there is no
acerued liability, Given the inherent uncertainty associated with lepal maners, the sctual cosis of resolving legal
cloims and associated costs of defense may be substantially higher or lower than the amounts for which sccruals have
been established. Based on available information and esiablished accruals, we do nod believe it 15 reasonably possible
that the results of these proceedings, either indivadually or m the aggrepate, wall have a matenal adverse effect on our
consolidated financial condition or resulis of operanons,
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
MNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dallars in millions)
Note 12 — Related Party Transactions

I'he tables below summarize amoums included in our Consolidated Statements of Income and in our Consolidated
Balance Sheets under vanous related pany agreements or relationships:

¥ears Ended March 31,
2019 2018 2017

Net financing revenunes:

Manufacturers’ subvention and other revenues L 1930 % 1,500 % 1,374

Depreciation on operatmg leases 5 [24) 3 (12y % -
Interest expense:

Credit support fees, interest and other expenses 5 9 5 95 5 95
Insurance earned premioms and contract revenues:

Insurance premiums and coniract revenues 5 181 5 182 % 149
Investment and other income, net:

Interest and other income 5 [ T 13 3% 9
Expenses:

Operating and administrative expenses 1 95 8 80 % 73

Inswrance losses and loss adjustrment expenses’ s {3y s {3 % -

L Amount inchudes the imnsfer of insusaney losses and loss adjusiment expenses under a neinsurance conirgl
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
MNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dallars in millions)
Note 12 — Related Party Transactions {Continued)

March 31, March 31,
2019 2018

Assers:
Cash and cash equivalents

Commercial paper £ - % 253
Investments in murketable securitics

Commercial pajper 5 T % 52
Finance receivables, net

Accounts receivable 5 150 % 191

Deferred retail subvennon income 5 (1.257) § (1,279}
Invesiments in operating leases, net

Investmenis in operating leases, net b 1 5 i

Deferred lease subveiition meome 5 (2062} % (1,682}
Diher nssels

Notes receivable 5 ol S 68

Other recevables, net 5 I % k1l
Liabilities:
Other liabilities

Unearned affilime insuratce premuiims and comract reveintiss 5 EET RS- 328

Other pavables. net 5 147 % T4

Notes payable 1 6 & &

TMCOCLC receives subveniion payvmenis from TMNA which resulis in a pross monthly subvention receivable, As of
March 31, 2009 and 2018, the subvention receivable from THMMA was 3171 million and 5279 million, respectively.,
We have a master netting agreement with TMNA, which allows us to net seitle payments for shared services and
subvention ransactions. Under this agreement, we had o net amount payable to TMNA, which resulted in the
subvention receivable being recorded in Ohher payables, net in Other liabalities as of March 21, 2009, The subvention
receivable was recorded in Other receivables, net in Oiher assets as of March 31, 2018,
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Note 12 — Related Party Transactions (Continued)
Financing Support Arrangements with Affiliates

TMOC is party 10 & credit suppon agreement with TESC (the “TMCC Credit Suppon Agreement™), The TMCOC
Credii Support Agreement requires TFSC 10 maimiain certain ownership, net worth mainienance, and debi service
prowisions with respect to TMOC, but s nod o gunrantee by TFSC of any secuntics or obligations of TMCC. In
conjunction with this credit suppon agreement, TMOC has agreed 1o pay TFSC a semi-anoual fee based on a fixed mie
applied 1o the weighted average owistanding amount of securities entitled 1o credit support.

TCPR is the beneficoary of a credit support agreenient with TFSC containing provisions similar ta the TMOC Credit
Support Agrecment described above.

In addition, TMOC receives suppornt from and provides financing support to TFSC and odlser affiliates in the form of
prommssony notes and vamous loan and credit facibity agreements. As of March 31, 2019 and 2018, total financing
support available from affiliates totaled approximately $8.5 billion and $3.6 ballion, respectively. As of March 31,
2019 and 2018, total financing support avatlable 1 affiliates totaled approximately 5.4 billion and 35,6 billion,
respectively, The amounts outstanding under these agreements are recordad in Other assets and Other liabilities in our
Consolidated Balance Sheets at March 21, 2009 and 201 5,

In May 2019, TMCC increased financing support available to Tovoda Financial Services Mexico, S A, de C.V., which
ingreases total financing support available wo affiliates by 51,5 billion,

thther Financing Suppert Provided to Affiliates

TMOC provides wholesale finoncing, real estate and working capital loans to certam dealerships that were
consolidated with another affiliate under the accounting guidance for variable interest entities. TMCC also pays these
dealers ongination fees. These costs represent direct costs incurred in connection with the acquisition of retail and
lepse contrngts, including subvention and other cash incentive programs,

TMCC has puaranteed the pavments of poneipal and mterest wath respect to the bonds of manufactuning facilities of
certamn affiliates. The nanire, business purpose, and amounts of these guarantees are described in Noge 11 -
Commitments and Comingancies.

TMCC and TFSB are parties to a master pariscipation agreement pursuant o which TMOC agreed io purchase up to
S60 million per year of residential mortgage loans originated by TFSB that meet speeified credit underwriting
guidelines, At March 31, 2019 and 2018, we had 523 million and 530 million, respectively, in loan participaiions
outstanding that had been purchased by TMOC under this agreement.

Slrared Service Arrangemients with Affiliates
TMOC is subject 1o the following shared service agreements:

. TMOC incurs costs under vanous shared service agreements with TMMNA and other affiliates. Services
provided by affiliates under the shared service agreements include cerain technological and administranve
services, such i information systems support, facilines, insurance coverage. human resources amd other
COFPOTALE SEMvIces.

. TMOC provides vanous services (o its subsidianes and affiliates, mcluding cerain administrative and
comporate services, operational support, information systems suppodt, facilities, treasury, and vendar
MANATEMEN SErvices

. TMCC provides vanous services to TFSB, melwding marketing, admimsirative, systers, and operanonal
support i exchange for TFSB making available certain financial products and services o TMCC's
customers and dealers meeting TFSE’s credit standards. TMOC is panty 1o a master netting agreement
with TFSB, which allows TMOC 1o net settle payments for shared services between TMOC and TFSB.

. TMCC 15 a party 10 expense reimbursement agreements with TFSB and TFSC related 1o costs incurred by
TMCC or these affiliates on behalf of the other party in connection with TMCOC s provision of services 1o
these affiliates or the provision by these affiliates of cenain financial products and services to our
customers and dealers in suppor of TMOC s customer lovalty stratepy and programs, and other brand and
sales support.
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Note 12 — Related Party Transactions {Continued |

idperational Nuppors Arvangenents with Affiliates

TMOC and TCPR provide vanous wholesale financing to dealers, which result in our having pavables i
TMNA and Toyota de Puerto Rico Corp,

TMOC 15 pary 1o o lease agreement with TMNA for aur headquarters facility i Plano, Texas, expinng in
2032 and our Customer Service Center located m Cedar Rapids, lowa, with no stated expiration dare.
TMOC was party to a lease agreement with TMNA for our former headquarters locanon in the TMS
headquaners complex in Torrance, Califorma, that was ierminated in the third quarter of fiscal 2008, The
lease commitments are described in Note 11 - Commitrments and Continpencies,

Subvention receivable represenis amounts due from TMMNA and other affiliates in support of retail and
lease subvention and other cash incentive programs offered by TMCOC. Deferred subvention income
represents the unearned portion of amounts received from these transactions, and manufactirers”
subvention and other revenues primarily represent the earned portion of such amounis,

Investment in operating leases includes contractual residual value support received from affiliates which
are recogmzed as an offset to depreciabion expense.

TMCC is a participaning employer in certain retirement, post-retirement medical care and life insurance
benefits sponsored by TMNA, Refer to Note 9 = Pension and Other Benefit Plans for addinonal

information.

TMOC is panty to agreements with TMNA and other affiliates relating to the team member vehicle benefit
program, which allows team members io lease Tovota and Lexus vehicles on terms exclusive to the
benefit program, TMNA serves as the chiel administinor of the program, TMOC acquires and serviges
e member leases entered into after the third quanier of fiscal 2008, A portion of the vehicles used for
the team member vehicle benefit program are acquired from TMNA. TMCC receives a per vehicle
contribution from participating affiliates 1o assist with the costs of its contribution to the benefit program,
and TMCC pavs a per vehicle participation fee to TMNA 1o parnicipate in the benefit program,

Affilinte insurance premiums and coniryel revenues primanly represent revenues from TMIS for coverage
and related admimistrative services provided to TMNA and affilintes. This includes contractual indemnity
coverage for limited warranties on certified Toyota and Lexus pre-owned vehicles and related
administrative services for TMNAs certified pre-owned vehicle program and umbrella lialility

policy, TMIS provides umbrella liability insurance 10 TMNA and affilinies covering certain doltar value
layers of nsk above vanous primary or selmswed retentions, O all layers in which TMIS has provided
coverage, 99 percent of the risk has been ceded 1o various reinsurers.
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MNote 13— Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the price that would be recerved to sell an asset or paid 1o transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. In order to determme far value of our assets and
liabilites, we use quoted prices for identical or similar instruments, ctherwise we unlize valuation models with
obzervable or calculated inputs, The use of observable quotes for identical or sirmlar instruments and the wse of
unobservable mputs 18 reflected in the fir valve lierarchy assessment disclosed in the fables withan this Note as Level
1, 2 and 3 defined below. The avalability of observable mputs can vary based upon the fnancial instrumient and other
factors, such as mstrument tvpe, market hquidity and other specific charactenistics particular to the financal
instrumeentt. To the extent that a valuation 15 based on models or inputs that are less observable or unobservable n the
market, the determinanon of fair value requires additional judgment by management, We use prices and inputs that are
ciirreril &8 of the measurement date, wcluding during periods of market disruption. In periods of market disruption, the
avanlabality of prices and inputs may be reduced for certan fimancial imstruments. This condition could result n a
financial nstrument being reclassified from Level | to Level 2 or from Level 2 to Level 3,

Level 1: Qruoted (unmdjusted) prices in active markets that are acoessible at the measwrement date For sdentical,
unrestricted assets or lnbilities.

Level 2: Chioted prices in active markets for similar asseis and liabilities, or inputs that are observable, either directly
or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the asset or hability.

Level 3: Unobservable inpuis that are supponed by litile or no market activity and may require significant judgment
in grder 1o determine the fair value of the assers and liabilines.

Valnation Adfusiments

We may make valuation adjustments 1o ensure that financial instruments are recorded at fair value, These adjusiments
inglude amounts to reflect counterparty credit quality, our own creditworthiness, as well xs constraintz due to market
iliquidity or unobservable parameters.

Recurring Fair Value Measuremenis

Corsh Egpreverlimts and Revirieted Casl Egunvnieniy

The fair value of cash equivalems and restricted cash equivalents approximates the carrying value and these
instrumsernts are classified m Level | of the fair value lierarchy,

Investments in Markeiabde Securiiies

We estimate the value of our AFS debt securities using observed transaction prices, independent third-party pricing
valuation vendors, and imernal valeation models

We may hold investments i actively traded open-end and private placement equity mvestments. Where the equity
investments produce a daily net asset value that s quoted in an active market, we use this value to determine the fair
value of the equity investment and classify the investment in Level | of the fair value hierarchy. The fair value of
equity investments that produce a daily net asset value that is not quaeted in an active market is estimated using the net
asset valwe per share (or its equivalent) as practical expechent and are excluded from leveling in the fair value
hierarchy.

In addition, we may hold indivichen] secunities where valuation methodologies and mputs w0 valuation models depend
on ihe secunty iype, thus they may be classified differently in the leveling hierarchy, Where possible, quoted prices in
active markets for identical or similar securitics are used to determine the fair value of the investment securities; those
securities are classified as Level 1 or 2, respectively. Where quoted prices in active markets are not available, we use
various valuation models for cach asset class that are consistent with what market participants use. The mguts and
assummplions 1o the models are derived lrom market observable sources ncluding: benchmark yvields, reponied rades,
broker/dealer quotes. 1ssuer spreads, benchmark securities, bids, offers, and other market=reloted dota. These
investments are generally elassified in Level 2 of the fair valee hierarchy, however depending on the significance of
the unobservable inputs (they may also be classified as Level 3.
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Note 13 — Fair Value Measurements {(Continued

Derivatives

We estimate the farr value of our denvatives using industry standard valuation models thae require observable market
inputs, i luding market prices, nterest rates, foreigm exchange rates, volabilities, counterparty credit nsk, our own
non-performance risk and the contractwal terms of the denvative instruments. We consider counterparty credit nsk
and our own non-performance risk throwgh credie valuation adjostments.

For derivatives that rade in lgquid markets, model inputs can generally be venfied and do not require significant
management judgment. These derivative instruments are classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy,

Certain edler denvative transactions trade in less higuid markets with hmied pocing information. For such
denvatives, key inputs 10 the valuation process nclude quotes from counterparties and other market dats used 1o
corroborste and adjust values where appropriate. Other market doia includes values obained from o market
participant that serves as a thied panty valuation vendor, These denvative instruments are classilied in Level 3 ol the
lair value hierarchy.

Nonrecurring Fair Value Measurements

Nonrecurting fur value measurements include Level 3 net finance receivables that are not measured at fair value ona
recurring basis, but are subject to far value adjustments utlizing the fair value of the underlyving collateral when there
is evidence of impaimment. 'We did not hove any significant nonrecurmng fuir value items as of March 31, 2019 and
2018,

Impaired Dealer Finance Receivafies

For finance receivables within the dealer products portfolio sepment for which there is evidence of impairment, we
may measure impairment based on discounted cash flows, the loan's observable market price or the fair value of the
underlying collateral if the boan is collateral-dependent. 11 the loan is collateral-dependent, the fair values of impaired
finance receivabics are reponed at fair value on a nonrecurring basis, The methods wsed o estimate the fair value of
the underlving collateral depends on the specihic ¢lass of linance receivable. For finance receivables wathin the
whelesale class of finnnce receivables, the collateral value 15 generully bused on wholesale morket value or lguidation
value for new and used vehicles. For finance receivables wiihin the real csinte class of finance receivables, the
collateral value is generally based on appraisals. For finance receivables within the working capital elass of finance
receivables, the collateral value is generally based on the expected liguidation value of e underlyving dealership
assets. Adjstments may be performed i circumstances where market comparables are not specific to the atributes of
the specific collateral or appraisal information may not be reflective of current market condinons due to the passage of
time and the eccurrence of market events since receipd of the mformation. As these valuations utilize unobservable
inputs, our impaired finance roceivables ane classified in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Inrpaired Revail Receivabley

Retuil finence receivables greater than 120 days past due are measured ot fur value based om the fr valee of the
underlymg collateral less costs 1o sell. The fair value of collnteral s based on the curment average selling prices for
like vehicles at wholesale used vehicle auctions.
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Note 13 — Fair Value Measurements {Continoed

Financtal Instriments Not Carried af Fafr Value

Finainee Receivallio

Our finance recervables consist of retail loans and dealer financing loans, which are compnised of wholesale, real
estate and working capital financing. Retail finance receivables are primanly valued using a securitization mode] thar
incorporates expected cash flows, Cash fows expected 1o be collected are estimated using contractual principal amd
interest payments adjusted for specific factors, such as prepayments, extensions, default rates, loss seventy, credit
scores, and collateral tvpe. The secunitezation model unilizes quoted secondary market rates if available, or estimated
market rates that incorporale managerment's best esimate of investor assumpnions about the pontfolo, The dealer
financing portfolio is valued wsing a discounted cash flow model. Discount raves are derived based on market rates fior
equivalent portfolio bond mtings. As these valuations unhze unobservable inputs, our finance recervables are
classified in Level 3 of the farr value hierarchy.

Prsecnred Nowes and Locns Pavalle

The fair value of commercial paper 15 assumed to approximate the carrying value due to its short duranon and
generally negligihle eredii risk. We validate this assumpiion by recaloulating the fair value of our commercial paper
usimg quoted market rates, Commercial paper s classified in Level 2 of the fair value herarchy

Other unsecured notes and boans pavable are primarily valued using current murket rates and eredit spresds for debt
with simmalar maturities, Our valuation models unlize observable mputs such as standard indusiry curves; therefore, we
classify these unsecused notes and loans pavables in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchv, When observable mputs are
not avarleble for all assumptions, we estimate the far valee using mtemal assumptions such as volanliny amd expected
credht losses. As these valustions utilize unobservable inputs, we classify these unsecured notes and loans pavable in
Level 3 of the fair value hicrarchy.

Secured Noves and Loans Pavable

Fuir value is estimated based on current market rates and credit spreads for debt wath simalar matunties, We also use
internal assumptions, includimg prepayment speeds and expected credit losses on the underlving securized assets, w
estimate the timing of cash flows to be pasd on these instrumenis.  As these valuatbions utilize unobservable mputs, our
secured notes and loans payables are classified in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy,
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Note 13 — Fair Value Measurements (Continmed )

Financial assets and financial liabilites are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is
sipmificant to the fair value measurement. The followmg tables summarize our financial assets and financial habihines
measured a1 fair value on a recurring basis by level within the fair value hierarchy except for cerain investments that
are measured ar fair value using the net asset value per share (or its equivalent) as a practical expedient and are
excluded from the levelmg informaton provided in the tables below, Fur value amounts presented below are imtended
tor permint reconciliation of the farr value hierarchy to the amounts presented m our Consolidated Balance Sheets.

March 21, 2H9

Csranlbotpanly
nciting & Farr
Level 1 |.ovel 2 Level 3 collateral value
Investments in marketnble secumes:
Available-for-sale debi seeurities:
U % gevermmeni anil agency ohlgations % 1M % ® % . 1 1 212
Municipal deli socuntics B 1i ] B 11
Certificates ol depasit - 50 - - 50
Commercwl paper = 0 = = T
Corporate debit secuntics - 162 - - 162
Mbiigage-backed sccanities:
L5, government agency - L3 - - is
Nom-agency resslentaal = = ] - 1
Nen-agency commercanl . - i . 1
Asset-backed securities - - 51 - 53
Avulable-for-sube debi securities kol 1" s ] s - 633

Faquity investments
Fied income mubml fusls:
Fined meonye munizal flands measured m
ol asset valae

Taostnl veturn basnd Fumils | 586 . -
Exquity inwvesimends 1otal R - T - - &
Investments in marketalde securibies 1oinl E ._l_:?.!gl! : M LA
Derivative assels;
liiberost rabe swips - AT 1
Fosapn curmoney swaps - T -
Coamierparty netlmg and collateral . = . [RLEN]
Dierivative assets total - M3 1 (483}
At ol fiar valse 1. TEd - Rl [ELEN]
Dienvabive hahalrses:
Interest mie swnps - (622 - - (h22
Fosergn cummeney sovaps - (785} - - (TRS)
Counterpany netimg and collateral - - - 1,3%1 1,3K1
|anbalutses o1 foar waloe = (1,407 o I, 3%] [Xa
Wet nssets ot foar value 5 LT80  % (318) % Mos B8 8 1943
1o
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Note 13 — Fair Value Measurements (Continmed )

March ¥, WHK
Countetparmy
ncitimg & Fum
__I.E'r:'] 1 _l.l.'“:'l 2 Level 3 collateral valie
Available-for-sale securitics:
Db securiies:
115, governmeni and agency ohlgatioms 5 2T 8 M % -1 - % 2,708
Mlunmapal debt wecunties. L 11 . . 11
Certilicates of depasit - 474 . a 474
Commezcaal paper . L] - . w2
Lorporate debi sacantics 15 %6 - - 2
Mhsstgage-backed sceurities:
LS. povermmonl agency . i) . . »
Kom-agency ressdenial . - 2 - 2
Wmn-apency commercial - = 9 a L]
Aswet-hacked seouritics - - i - 3
Eapuiny imvestments:
Fived ipseomne smivunl Dumils:
Tied meaime mutias] fands measianed m
mel asset valug el
Tautal retwm bond Fupils 1.524 - - - 1.524
Available-for-sale secinises 1tal 4313 THA 0 5539
Denivnlive sssels
Interest mic swaps - 872 - - T2
Intcress mate foors - I - - 1
Fose gn curteney swnps - LAY - - £ 1o
Cosmterpasty netimg and collateral . - . (1,297} {1,297
Dierivalive sssels otal - 1,358 - [1.2%7) &l
Assects ol fadr valoc 1313 21 o (1,297 LR L]
Denvanive lishiliises:
Interest rabe swaps - (60T 21y (628
Fowcapm cinmeney swips. [Ny - B (2061
Countcrpanmy nerting and collaicral - o - . var} i)
Laababitses sl fuir walue - (807 21 A2 (3]
Men assers an far value 133 5 L1377 § 49 5 {475) § 5 HR4
1
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KOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Dallars in millions)

Note 13 — Fair Value Measurements (Continmed )

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recogmized at the end of their respective reporting periods.
Transfers between levels of the far value hierarchy during the years ended March 31, 20019 and 2018 resulted from
changes in the transparency of inputs and were not significant,

The following tables summarize the rollforward of all assets and hobilines measured at far value on a recurring basis
using significant unobservable mputs;
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Level 3 Fair Value Measurements

The Level 3 financial assets and habilities recorded at fair value which aré subject to recurmng and nonrecurmng fair
value measurement, and the corresponding change in the fair value measurements of these assets and habilimes, were
not significant to our Consolidated Balance Sheets or Consolidated Statements of Income as of and for the vears ended

March 31, 200% and 2018,

12
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dallars in millions)

Note 13 — Fair Value Measurements {(Continued

Financtal fnstrivmenis

The following tables provide information about assets and labilities not carmed at (s value on a recurming basis on
vur Consolidated Balance Shewis.

March 31, 2019
Canrving Total Fair
_value  Levell  Levd2  Leveld _ Value
Financial assets
Fimanee receivables, net
Retail loan 8 53013 § - 5 - 5 53247 § 53247
Wholesale 10,293 - . 10,369 10,369
Real estae 4,550 - - 4,534 4,534
Waorking capital 2,510 - - 2,554 2,554
Financial liabilities
Unsecured notes and loans payable 5 80521 5 - 5 79056 5 2313 5 El36Y
Secured notes and loans payable 12,401 - - 12,428 12428
March 31, 2018
Carrying Tutal Fair
_valwe  Levell  Level2  Leveld  Value
Financial assets
Finance receivables, net
Retail boan 5 523M 0§ - 5 - & R0BI 5 52081
Whalesale 10,365 - . 1413 10,413
Real estate 4,492 - - 4,409 4,409
Working capital 2222 - - 2,197 2,197
Financial habilites
Unsecured notes and loans payable 5 B4T5 5 - %5 32754 5 231 5 5085
Secured notes and loans payable 13,638 - - 13,588 13,588

The carrving value of each class of finance receivables includes accreed interest and deferved fees and costs, net of
defermed income and the allowance for credit losses, Fimnee receivables, net excludes related party transsctions, for
which the fuir value approximates the currying value, of $148 million and 5189 million at Murch 31, 2009 and 2015,
respectively. Fair values of related party finance receivables, net would be classified as Level 3 of the fair value
higrarchiy.

13
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
MNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dallars in millions)
Note 14 — Segment Information

Owr reportable sepments are Finance and Insurance operanons. Finance operations include retail, leasing, and dealer
financing provided to authonzed dealers and their customers in the LS. and Puerto Fico. Insurance operations are
performed by TMIS and 115 subsidiaries.

Finanial informatson for our reportable operating segments, which includes allocated corporate expenses, is

summarized as follows:
Yiear ended Mareh 31, 2014
Frnance Imsurance Imereompany
operations operaiions. climinations Total

Total financing revenues 5 1640 & - 5 - 5 11,640
Depreeintion on operating leascs 0 = - 1,5
|r.||rn..-sl¢1pcrmr 1,?{1".' - (223 !,T-IT
Met financing revenues [elexd - 2 .84
Insurance carned premiums and coniract revenucs - Uk - nked
Inviesimeni and other income, mel &R 126 {22} _m
Ml linancing and other nevenucs 2150 1,030 - 1,180
Expenses:

Privision For credit loases iz - - n

Operating and sdministrative expenses 1,038 a7 - 1,385

Insummne losses and loss sdjusiment expenses - 440 - i
Toinl expenses 1410 T3 - 2 N3
Income before income axes T4 37 - ur?
Provision for income laxes 147 a5 . 182
MNel mnomme 5 3 5 wm s - § T5
Total assets 5 112618 S Sihh & (1I65) & 116316

114
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Toan financing revenucs
Depreciation on operating leases
Imlerest expense

Nel fnapcing revemes

Insurance earmed premiums and confract revenues
Investment and other imcome. nel
Net financmg and other revemises

Expenses:
Provision for credit losses
Uperating ond administratinve expenscs
Insurnnes losses ond loss adjusiment expenses
Tosn expenses

Income before income taxes
(Benelit) provasion for income taxes

Ml mosane

Toanl assens

Toanl financang revenues
Deprecintion an operaiing leascs
Inlerest expense

MNet financing revenuss

Insurance camed premiums and coniract revenucs
Irvesament and other income, nel
Net fimancmg and other revenises

Expenses:
Provision for credit losses
Operating and pdrmnsimiive expenses
Insurance lasses and loss adjusiment cxpenses
Toaal Expenses

Ieeme belore income taxes
Provision for income laxes

(Dallars in millions)

Note 14 — Segment Information (Continmed )

ar ended March 31, 2018
Frnance Imsurance Imcrconpamy
_bperutions _operslions _climinations  Total
5 10,717 § = 8 - & 10,717
T - 7M1
1,863 - [{F4] 1,#51
1,513 - 2 1825
- HE2 ¥ B2
144 129 (12) 257
1,953 1ALl - 21N
401 - - 4
1028 129 - 1,357
- 425 - 425
1429 754 - 2183
534 257 - T4
11,654} 25 - (2629)
5 3,178 § 23 % - & 3410

S5 16542 5 4091 5

¥ear ended March 31, 2017

(LORT) § 120,546

Finance Imsuramce Imercompany
_bperations _operations  eliminations  Total
5 MG S - § = 5 MG
h53 - = 0,853
— L7% 2 i5) 1,754
I434 - 5 1439
- Hikd - Hikd
137 (%) (%) I
1,771 HE - 2639
582 - - 582
970 298 - 1,277
3 m = i |
1561 st - 2330
1] [ : 409
67 75 . 142
& 143 % 24 & - 5 P,
5__LIsMI 5 4470 5 (LOR3) § 119635

15
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
MOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Dallars in millions)
Note 14 — Segment Information (Contined
Fnswrarice operations

The Insurance operations segment offers vehicle and payment protection products on Toyota, Lexus and other
domestic and port vehicles thai are sold by dealers along with the sale of o vehicle.

fnsirance Farned Preminms

Revenuwes frodm providing coverape under varous contractunl agreements are pecopnized over the term of the coverage
i relation (o the nming and level of antcipated clams and admimstranve expenses. Revenues from imsurance
polecies, net of premiums ceded to reinsurers, are eamed over the terms of the respective policies in proportion to the
esttmated loss development, Management relies on histoncal loss experience as a basis for establishing earmings
faciors used to recognize revenue over the term of the coniract or policy.

fusieramee Controact Revennes

We receive the contractually determined dealer cost ar the inception of the contract, Revenue is then deferred and
recopnized over the 1erm of the contract according 1o earmings factors established by management that are based upon
historical loss expenence. Contracts sold rmmge in term from 3 to 1 200 months and are typcally cancellable at any
nme. The effect of subsequent cancellations is recorded as an offset to uneamed contract revenues m Other liabilines
on our Consolidated Balance Sheets

For the year ended March 31, 2019, approxamately 84 percent of Insurance camed premiums and contract revenues in
the Insurance operations segment were accounted for under ASLU 2004-09,

The Insurance operations sepment defers contraciually determmed incentives pand 1o Jdenlers as contract costs for
selling vefucle and payment protection products. These costs are recorded in Other assets oo our Consolidated
Balance Sheets and are amortized io Operating and administraiive expenses on the Consolidated Stmtemenis of Income
using a methodology consistent with the recognition of revenue. The amount of capimlized dealer incentives and the
related amortization was not significant to our consolidated financial statemenis as of and for the vear ended March
31, 2019,

We had $2.2 hallion of uneamed insurance premiums and contract revenues within the scope of the revenus
recagmibon gusdance included in Other habilites as of Apnl 1, 2018 and March 31, 20019, We recogmized 5652

il liois of the uneamed amount in Insurance eamed premums and contract revennes i aur Consolidated Statements
of Income dunng fiscal 2019, We expect 1o recogmize as revenue approximately $673 mulhion m fiscal 2020, and 51.6
billion ihereafter.

dnsierinree Lowses aued Losy ddjustment Expenses

Insurance losses and loss adjustment expenses inclede amounts paid and accrued for loss events that are known and
have been recorded as claims, estimates of lesses incurred but not reported based on actuanal esumates and historical
loss development pattems, and loss adjustment expenses that are expected 1o be incurred in connection with settling
and paying these clanms.

Aceruals for unpaid losses, losses incurred but not reported, and loss adjustment expenses are included in Other
Iabaluties i our Consalidated Balance Sheetz, These accruals ansing from contraciual agreements enterad mto by
TMIS are not sigmaficant as of March 31, 2009 and 20018, Estimated habilines are reviewed regularly, and we
recopgmize any adjustments n the penods m which they are determined. ¥ anticipated losses, loss adjustment
expenses, and unamonized acquisition and maintenance costs exceed the recorded uneamed premium, a premium
deficiency 15 recogmized by first charging any unamaonized acquisition costs o expense and then by recording a
liabaluey fior any excess deficiency

Risk Transfer
Qur insurance operations transfer cortuin risks to protect us against the impaet of unpredictable high severity losses.
The amounts recoverable from remsurers and other compamaes tht sssume Babalities relating o our lnsurance
operutions are determined in u munoer consistent with te related remsurance or nsk runsfer agreement.  Amounts
recoverable from remsurers and other companies on unpuid losses are recorded as a recetvable but are not collecuble
until the losses are paid. Revenues related wo risks transfemed are recognized on the same basis as the related revenues
Trom the underlying agreements, Covered losses are recorded as a redection to Insurance losses and loss adjustment
CRPCISES.

16
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dallars in millions)

Note 15 — Selected Quarterly Financial Data

. _ Unaudited —
First Secomnd Thard Fourth
uaricr (uarter Chuarter (uarter

Year ended March 31, 20019:
Financing revenues:

Operating lease 5 L e T 2I6T 8§ 2212 8 2189

Retail 535 547 578 575

Drealer IS 176 178 182
Total fimancing revenucs 1536 2 KM 2. U063 2946

Depreciation on operating leases 1,7 1,662 1,717 1,764

Interest cxpense [ T2 644 fafd
MNet financing revenues ERRY 53 552 58
Insurance enmed premiums and contract revenues 224 2 236 228
Investment amd other income, nel Al i 63 128
Met fimancing revenucs and other revemucs 652 ROE Hah 574
Expenscs:

Provisson for credat losses Ha a7 1 Lk

Operating and administrative i HE 347 £

Insurance losses and loss adjusiment expenses 125 12 1 103
Total cxpenscs 538 527 563 375
Income hefore income taxes 114 281 283 299
Provision for income taxes . KT 9 4
MNed inconie b LU Il S 214 § 295

17
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TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dallars in millions)

Note 15 — Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Continued

Unaudited
First Second Third Fourth
_ Quarer  Quaner  Quarter Quarler

Year ended March 31, 2008z
Financing revenucs:

Operating lease 5 [T 2006 5 2068 8 2102

Retail 474 40 494 512

Drealer 143 141 140 152
Total financing revenues 2,59 2,647 2,7 2,7
Depreciation on operating leases | 651 1714 1,778 1,863
Intercst cxpense HH 4352 428 523
Net financing revenucs 460 476 S 380
Insurance eamed premiums and contract revenugs 216 221 220 225
Investment and other income, net B S B 47
Mol financing revenues and other revenues 173 753 86 652
Expenscs:

Provision for credit losses HS 127 Tk =1

Operating and adminisirative 313 337 a2 izd

Insurance losses and loss adjustment expenses 114 a2 1K1 104
Total gxpenses 512 S 531 74
Incame before income taxes 4l &7 285 78
Provision (benefit) for mcome taxcs SH T (23215 26
Net income 5 16 < 1T s 1.0% % 52

1%
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2017 15
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2017 15
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2018 12 21
2019
2017 15
10. 2019 23
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)
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
( )| 27,234,521 | 28,403,118 | 27,597,193 | 29,379,510 | 30,225,681
( ) 2,892,828 2,983,381 2,193,825 2,620,429 2,285,465
( ) 2,173,338 2,312,694 1,831,109 2,493,983 1,882,873
( ) 3,294,275 1,517,486 1,966,650 2,393,256 1,936,602
( )| 17,647,320 | 18,088,186 | 18,668,953 | 19,922,076 | 20,565,210
( )| 47,729,830 | 47,427,597 | 48,750,186 | 50,308,249 | 51,936,949
() 5,334.96 5,513.08 5,887.88 6,438.65 6,830.92
() 688.02 741.36 605.47 842.00 650.55
() 687.66 735.36 599.22 832.78 645.11
() 35.2 35.3 35.9 37.2 37.3
() 13.9 13.8 10.6 13.7 9.8
() 12.2 8.0 10.0 8.1 10.0
( ) 3,685,753 4,460,857 3,568,488 4,223,128 3,766,597
( ) 3,813,490 3,182,544 2,969,939 3,660,092 2,607,241
( ) 306,045 423,571 375,165 449,135 540,839
( ) 2,284,557 2,939,428 3,149,326 3,219,639 3,706,515
) 344,109 348,877 364,445 369,124 370,870
[ 1 [ 85,848] [ 86,843] [ 86,005]| [ 84,731]| [ 87,129]|
)
2019
2017 2018
( )
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)
111 112 113 114 115
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
( 11,200,414 | 11,585,822 | 11,476,343 | 12,201,443 | 12,634,439
2,125,104 | 2,284,001 | 1,801,736 | 2,238,140 | 2,323,121
( 1,600,679 | 1,810,370 | 1,520,011 | 1,859,312 | 1,896,824
( 397,049 635,401 635,401 635,401 635,401
( 3,417,007 | 3,337,007 | 3,262,907 | 3,262,007 | 3,262,907
( _ 47,100 47,100 47,100 47,100
( 10,184,271 10,859,443 11,365,784 12,040,947 12,450,274
( 15,128,623 | 16,100,200 | 16,592,167 | 17,200,436 | 17,716,993
) 3,235.44 3,417.07 3,659.40 3,972.72 4,225.55
200 210 210 220 220
, ) o) ( 100) ( 100) ( 100) ( 100)
— 52 105 158 211
, ) « 5 ( 26.0) ( 52.5) ( 79.0) (105.5)
) 535.22 581.08 506.96 628.31 657.10
) 534.95 575.64 500.65 620.85 649.89
) 67.3 67.4 68.5 70.0 70.3
) 17.8 17.2 13.8 15.9 15.5
) 15.7 10.2 11.9 10.9 9.9
) 37.4 36.1 41.4 35.0 33.5
O 70,037 72,721 73,875 74,890 74,515
[ [ o047  [10,371)]  [10.700 [ 10,005) [ 11.122]|
D) 1473 109.2 114.3 131.6 129.5
( () (130.7) (116.5) (133.7) (154.9) (147.1)
TOP1X)
) 8,741 8,637 7,156 7,782 7,502
) 5,314 5,710 4,975 5,605 6,079
)
( 28 2018 16 ) 115
114
)
( )
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@
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
( ) 1,645,393 1,880,183 1,812,554 1,978,884 2,141,906
( ) 367,586 330,190 215,447 280,769 313,306
( ) 235,090 232,719 148,687 509,930 222,308
( ) 383,235 82,594 117,191 439,270 267,214
( ) 2,091,538 2,173,667 2,291,850 2,733,310 2,893,403
( ) 22,079,002 21,379,657 22,188,626 22,636,927 23,660,621

) 1,319,596.49 | 1,372,219.52 | 1,444,732.41| 1,721,667.31 | 1,816,366.85

() 149,691.36 |  148,181.83 94,674.94 |  324,692.91 |  141,552.90
() — — — — —
() 9.4 10.1 10.2 11.9 12.1
() 12.5 11.0 6.7 20.5 8.0
) — — — — —
( ) — — — — —
( ) — — — — —
( ) — — — — —
( ) — — — — —
) 9,463 9,670 10,172 10,364 10,634
) (1,380) (1,536) (1,548) (1,450) (1,540)
)
( 28 30 16 )
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@)

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
114,146 41,846 39,854 58,411 75,532
107,950 30,975 28,947 47,297 63,027
101,148 27,192 26,160 42,983 57,665
78,525 78,525 78,525 78,525 78,525
1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500 1,570,500
532,181 556,311 581,408 624,560 580,459
542,196 562,541 589,136 633,111 586,472
338,861.06 | 354,225.54 | 370,206.23 | 397,682.51 |  369,601.93
_ _ . . 63,674.00
(63,674.00)
64,405.56 17,314.84 16,657.31 27,369.48 36,717.92
98.2 98.9 98.7 98.6 99.0
21.0 5.0 4.6 7.1 9.6
_ _ — — 173.4
87 86 79 73 85
(14) 17) (18) (16) (14)

(

)
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)
635,401 100
)
(
16,500 100
Plano, ( ) 100
Texas, U.S.A. 915,000 (100)
Plano, ( ) 100
Texas, U.S.A. 10,000 (100)
Markham, ( ) 100
Ontario, Canada 60,000
( )
Cologne, Germany 30.000 100
Amsterdam, ( )
( ) Netherlands 908 100
Epsom, Surrey, ( ) 100
(UK) United Kingdom 119,800
St Leonards, ( )
New South Wales, 120.000 100
Australia ’
( 86.8
Bangkok, Thailand (0'1)
15,100 )
3,100,000 100
45
)
Sandton, Gauteng, ( ) 33.3
South Africa 4,695 (33.3)
( )
3,746,104 33.3
5
( )
)
( )
10
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2019 31
)
1,977
3,370
1,215
3,987
C ) 85
10,634 (1,540)
)
( )
)
C )
@
2019 31
) ) ) C )
85 (14) 45.1 7.5 10,598
) )
( ) )
(©)
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholder of
Toyota Motor Credit Corporation:

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated bal ance sheets of Toyota Motor Credit Corporation and its subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of March 31, 2019 and 2018, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income,
shareholder’s equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2019, including the related notes
(collectively referred to as the “ consolidated financia statements’). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of March 31, 2019 and 2018, and the results of
its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2019 in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basisfor Opinion

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility isto express
an opinion on the Company’s consolidated financia statements based on our audits. We are apublic accounting firm
registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (“PCAOB”) and are required to be
independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits of these consolidated financial statementsin accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we
engaged to perform, an audit of itsinternal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits we are required to obtain an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company'sinternal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether dueto error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on
atest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our audits also included
evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audits provide areasonable basis for our opinion.

/< PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Dallas, Texas

June 4, 2019
We have served as the Company’s auditor since 1983.
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